
AGENDA

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015)

Wednesday, 9 November 2016

Dear Councillor

NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date Thursday, 17 November 2016

Time 9.30 am

Venue Main Committee Room, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Northallerton, DL6 2UU

Yours sincerely

J. Ives.
Dr Justin Ives
Chief Executive

To: Councillors Councillors
S P Dickins (Chairman)
Mrs C S Cookman (Vice-Chairman)
M A Barningham
G W Ellis
C A Dickinson
R W Hudson

D Hugill
Ms C Palmer
Mrs I Sanderson
A Wake
D A Webster

Other Members of the Council for information 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA

Page No

1. MINUTES 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2016 (SC.16 - 
SC.20), previously circulated.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3. COUNCIL PERFORMANCE 2016/17 (QUARTER 2) 1 - 18

Report of the Chief Executive

4. REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT 19 - 24

Report of the Director of Finance (s151 Officer) (Acting)

5. POLICY REVIEW - HEALTH AND SAFETY 25 - 28

Report of the Chairman

6. POLICY REVIEW - CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT 29 - 36

Report of the Chairman

7. MATTERS OF URGENCY 

Any other business of which not less than 24 hours’ prior notice, preferably in 
writing, has been given to the Chief Executive and which the Chairman decides 
is urgent.



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report To: Scrutiny Committee
17 November 2016
 

Subject: COUNCIL PERFORMANCE 2016/17 (QUARTER 2)
All Wards

1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:    

1.1 The revised Council Plan for 2015-2019 was adopted at Council on 13 September 2016.

1.2 The Council Plan shows the Council’s goals with measurable outcomes in the form of 
Council Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).  The Council’s approach to performance 
management is designed to ensure that priorities are effectively implemented, monitored 
and managed to achieve real improvements in the quality of life in the local community.
  

1.3 This report provides the Scrutiny Committee with details on progress towards the Council’s 
aims together with information on indicators performing exceptionally well, and actions to 
address areas of under-performance at 2016/17 Quarter 2.

1.4 Progress is reported on a cumulative year-to-date basis, with actual results achieved during 
Q2 also provided to enable comprehensive review.

1.5 The public has access to this information through these quarterly performance reports.

1.6 The Council’s Performance and Risks are also reported quarterly to the Management 
Team.

2.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:  

2.1 An overview of performance against each Council priority is attached in Annex ‘A’.

2.2 In summary, 71.43% or 25 KPIs performed on or above target at Quarter 2.

2.3 Of the KPIs successfully meeting their targets, the following three achieved notable 
progress: 

2.3.1 Facilitate 15 graduates into Hambleton businesses by April 2107 through the 
Graduate Scheme

Target Q2 = 5, Actual = 7
Continuing to publicize this scheme and seven applications have been approved, 
five of which have applicants in place.  
Profiled to achieved target over the year as Q1 = 0, Q2 = 5, Q3 = 5 and Q4 = 5 to 
reflect the academic year

2.3.2 Achieve £2.69m of leisure centre income

Target Q2 = 1.28m, Actual at Q2 = £1.34m 
Income is above target.  Directly linked to key products including a higher Health & 
Fitness membership base.
(EST) Profile of income target Q1= £619K, Q2= £662K, Q3 = £620K, Q4 = £787K.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2.3.3 Deliver a total of 20 affordable homes in rural locations

Target at Q2 = 10, Actual at Q2 = 37 homes.
The target of 20 affordable homes in rural locations for the full year has been 
substantially exceeded with a further 12 homes completed in Q2 – 6 units in both 
Stillington and Leeming Bar.

2.4 The KPIs not meeting their target at Q2 are: 

2.4.1 To achieve the national indicator by increasing the number of major planning 
applications determined within 8 weeks, or as agreed with the applicant to 85%

Target YTD at Q2 = 80%, YTD at Q2 = 70% [actuals 14/20]
Actual at Q2 = 100%
Q1 performance was largely affected by refusal of applications challenging the 
Council’s position on 5 year housing supply.  Closer monitoring and management 
procedures have resulted in significant improvement in Q2.

2.4.2 Achieve 600 referrals signed up to Take that Step programme

Target at Q2 = 300, Actual at Q2 = 281
YTD at Q2 = 281
Very challenging targets based upon the funding Memorandum of Understanding 
with North Yorkshire County Council Public Health and Hambleton, Richmondshire 
& Whitby Care Commissioning Group (CCG).  Closely monitor in Q3.
Await clarification on withdrawal of CCG funding.

2.4.3 Ensure compliance with the food hygiene inspection programme 

Target at Q2 = 79%, Actual at Q2 = 69% [actuals 80/116] 
YTD at Q2 = 70% [actuals 139/199]
This is a new KPI for 2016/17 for which a more accurate method of calculation has 
been developed since Q1 figures were reported.  The results and profile for the year 
are consequently being restated with effect from Q2.  
The revised profile takes into account the full range of inspections conducted and 
therefore more accurately represents the work undertaken to ensure compliance.
Whilst the target for the year remains at 79% of premises inspected, this is now 
based on a revised profile of 317 out of 400 actual inspections (originally 251/317).  
Profile 2016/17 : Q1 -  83,  Q2 - 116, Q3 - 107, Q4 – 94

2.4.4 Ensure compliance with the private water supply risk assessment programme

Annual Target – 95%   Actual Q2 – 90% [actuals 9/10]
YTD at Q2 – 90% [actuals 9/10]
A manual programme for Private Water Supply (PWS) risk assessments has been 
developed for the next 5 years.  We are in the second 5 year phrase since the 
legislation was implemented but we have not yet achieved the work required in the 
first 5 year phase.  
The program will ensure that all risk assessments will be completed and reviewed 
before 31/12/20 which will mean we will have improved to be within 3 years of the 
due date.  However, changes to legislation recently have increased the risk 
assessment expectation.

Page 2



2.4.5 To achieve a minimum customer satisfaction rating of 90% for the Council’s waste 
collection service.

Target Q2 - 90%  Actual Q2 –  81%
YTD at Q2 – 80%
Comprehensive survey to be run during 2018, once the new recycling and green 
waste arrangements have become established.
Until then GovMetric data will be reported, however it should be noted that this 
detail is not representative of the service as a whole.
Performance down due to poor Web satisfaction rates in April 28%, May 81%, June 
46%.  Q2 result July 76%, August 86%, Sept 73%

2.4.6 Deliver an effective and efficient refuse and recycling collection service by 
completing the three stages of route optimisation by December 2016

Target 100% by Dec 2016  Actual Q2 - 5%
YTD at Q2 – 30% (Stage 1 / 2)
Stage 1- integration of all domestic properties onto kerbside recycling service… 
complete (25%) 
Stage 2- actual data verification, production of optimised rounds including operator 
dry run… (25%) awaiting mapping, 1 round draft, dry run to be undertaken 
Stage 3- implementation of new rounds including communications with interested 
parties… not started (50%).

2.4.7 Process new council tax claims within 20 days in line with North Yorkshire 
authorities

Target Q2 – 20 days  Actual Q2 – 26.39 days
YTD at Q2 – 22.54 days
Staff vacancies have occurred in Q2 which was further impacted by the difficulty in 
being able to contract agency staff.  
The introduction of Universal Credit has impacted on performance as customers are 
unable to inform the authority of the necessary information for a period of 30 days, 
due to DWP processing times for customers receiving notification of their 
entitlement.  
This is being actively monitored.

2.4.8 To detect and prevent the amount of Housing Benefit and Council Tax fraud against 
a target of £50,000

Annual Target - £50K  Actual at Q2 - £00.00
YTD at Q2 - £16.83
This target has been set at £50k with the expectation that fraud and error would be 
identified from the areas of council tax and limited housing benefit.
Veritau holds the Council’s contract for investigating fraud in these areas and the 
contract has been running for a year from September 2015 to September 2016.  An 
investigation is currently underway as to why the fraud and error detection has fallen 
significantly below target whilst this area has been outsourced.
Further information will be provided at Quarter 3.

3.0 CONCLUSIONS: 

3.1 Performance against the revised Council Plan 2015-19 key priorities is being managed and 
action plans have been developed to address areas of weaker performance to assist the 
Council to progress to meet its priorities.

Page 3



4.0 RECOMMENDATION:

4.1 It is recommended that the Scrutiny Committee considers the progress made at Q2 against 
the Council Plan 2015-19, as detailed in Annex ‘A’.

LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (S151 OFFICER) ACTING

Background papers: Management Team Report 2016/17 Quarter 2

Contact Louise Branford-White
Director of Finance (s151 officer) Acting
Direct Line No: (01609) 767024

Author Ref: Pam Channer
Performance and Improvement Officer
Direct Line No: (01609) 767034

Page 4



P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
–

 3
0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
6

 

  
  
T

h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 P
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
e

c
o
n

d
 q

u
a

rt
e
r 

o
f 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

, 
a

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 E
x
te

n
d
e

d
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
T

e
a
m

 o
n

 1
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

6
. 

 

  
  
K

e
y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

: 


 

D
ri

v
in

g
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 V
it
a

lit
y
 


 

E
n

h
a
n

c
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h
 &

 W
e

llb
e

in
g

 


 

C
a
ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 


 

P
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 S
p

e
c
ia

l 
P

la
c
e

 t
o

 L
iv

e
 

 

       
 

Annex A

Page 5



P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 

1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 –
 D

ri
v
in

g
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 V
it

a
li

ty
 

P
u

rp
o

s
e
: 

  

-
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 

-
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
  

-
 

E
n
a

b
le

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 s

e
t 
u

p
 a

n
d
 g

ro
w

 

-
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 f

ri
e
n
d

ly
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

-
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n

 

-
 

M
a
x
im

is
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

-
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

to
w

n
 v

it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

: 
  

-
 

N
e

w
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 &

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
o

p
e
n

in
g
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

-
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 g

ra
n
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

-
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 s

ta
y
, 

g
ro

w
 a

n
d
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

re
a

 

-
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

  
a
c
h

ie
v
e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
, 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 &
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

-
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 l
e
v
y
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
  
to

 a
s
s
is

t 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

-
 

L
a
n
d

 i
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
n
e

e
d
s
 u

n
ti
l 
2

0
3

5
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 L
o
c
a

l 
P

la
n
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

F
a
c
ili

ta
te

 2
5
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
to

 l
o
c
a
l 
s
m

a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
7

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 

2
5

 
1
3

 
2
5

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

O
f 

th
e
s
e
 

1
4
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

h
a
v
e

 
a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 
in

 
p
la

c
e
 
a

n
d
 
w

e
 
a
re

 
w

a
it
in

g
 
1
1
 
to

 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 
a
p
p
o

in
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
. 

F
a
c
ili

ta
te

 1
5
 g

ra
d

u
a
te

s
 i
n
to

 H
a
m

b
le

to
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
7

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 G

ra
d
u
a

te
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

1
5

 
7
 

7
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

in
g

 t
o
 p

u
b

lic
iz

e
 t
h

is
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 7

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 5

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
. 

  

P
ro

fi
le

d
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 Q

1
 =

 0
, 

Q
2
 =

 
5
, 
Q

3
 =

 5
 a

n
d

 Q
4
 =

 5
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

1
4
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
 t
h

e
 E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
7

 
1
4

 
3
 

1
4

 
A

ll 
1
4

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 i
n

 2
0

1
6
/1

7
; 
1

1
 a

re
 i
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o
f 

2
 p

o
s
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 V

ib
ra

n
t 

M
a
rk

e
t 
T

o
w

n
s
 w

o
rk

, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

1
2
 

s
m

a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 s

u
b
s
c
ri
b
e
 t
o

 t
h
e

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

m
a
ll 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 

 

N
o
rt

h
 N

o
rt

h
a

lle
rt

o
n
 S

e
c
ti
o
n

 1
0
6
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n

e
d
 b

y
 

a
ll 

la
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 
s
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

1
7
. 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 
fo

r 
N

o
rt

h
a
lle

rt
o

n
 –

 B
a

llo
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n

y
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

. 
 W

o
rk

 o
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 I

n
w

a
rd

 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

 
 

Page 6



P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 

1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
a

rg
e

t 
/ 

B
e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

9
8
%

  
  
  
  

9
8
%

 
2
5
.3

7
%

 
6
0
.7

5
%

 
O

n
 t
ra

c
k
. 

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 %

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d
 o

n
ly

. 
 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a
x
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

9
8
%

  
  

  
  

9
8
%

 
2
8
.4

8
%

 
5
9
.0

8
%

 
O

n
 t
ra

c
k
. 

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 %

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d
 o

n
ly

. 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
is

 £
2
7

.4
m

 i
n
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 

£
2
7
.4

m
 

£
7
,2

7
8
,1

3
6

 
£
1
7
,4

5
3
,8

3
7

 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

is
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 

ra
te

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
. 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
b

y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e

 n
u

m
b
e
r 

o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
s
, 
o
r 

a
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n

t,
 t

o
 8

0
%

 

8
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 

[8
 o

f 
8
] 

7
0
%

 

[1
4
 o

f 
2
0

] 

Q
1
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 r

e
fu

s
a
l 
o
f 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 5

 y
e

a
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p

p
ly

. 

C
lo

s
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d

 i
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 Q
2

 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
b

y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e

 n
u

m
b
e
r 

o
f 

m
in

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 8

 w
e
e
k
s
, 
o
r 

a
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n

t,
 t

o
 8

5
%

 

8
5
%

 
8
9
.6

%
 

[1
2
1
 o

f 
1
3
5
] 

8
4
%

  
 

[2
1
6
 o

f 
2
5
7
] 

Q
1
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

u
rn

-o
v
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

d
e
la

y
e

d
 c

a
s
e
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 i
n

 G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
. 

 

C
lo

s
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a

v
e
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 Q
2
 d

e
s
p

it
e
 s

ta
ff

 t
u
rn

-o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 8

0
%

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

 i
n
 d

e
fe

n
d
in

g
 a

p
p
e

a
ls

 w
h

e
re

 
m

a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

8
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

[0
/0

] 
1
0
0
%

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

[0
/0

] 
N

o
 a

p
p
e
a

l 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
 s

c
o
p
e
 f

o
r 

o
v
e
rt

u
rn

s
. 

 O
th

e
r 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 i
te

m
s

 o
f 

in
te

re
s

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 d
u

ri
n

g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
E

v
e
n

ts
 


 

“B
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 S

h
if
ti
n
g
 S

a
n
d
s
” 

e
v
e

n
t 
o
rg

a
n

is
e
d
 b

y
 A

m
a
n
d
a
 M

a
d
d

e
n
 w

it
h

 K
e

v
in

 H
o
lin

ra
k
e
 M

P
 a

n
d
 L

o
rd

 B
e
s
t 
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
. 

A
tt
e

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 P

la
n
n

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

. 


 

A
g
e

n
t’
s
 F

o
ru

m
. 
T

ra
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 f

e
e
d
b

a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 P

la
n
n

in
g
 A

g
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 &

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 

 

F
e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

m
a
ll

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
  

In
 Q

2
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 1

7
 m

o
re

 s
m

a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

2
9
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

s
o
 f

a
r.

 

S
to

k
e
s
le

y
 W

i-
F

i 
 

 

A
 j
o
in

t 
W

a
y
le

a
v
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 C

O
-O

P
 a

n
d
 L

a
n
d

lo
rd

. 
A

w
a
it
in

g
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 C

O
-O

P
 l
e
g

a
l 
te

a
m

. 
W

a
yl

e
a

v
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 D
e
v
e
re

u
x
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o
 S

to
k
e
s
le

y
 P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

s
ig

n
e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 l
a
n
d

lo
rd

. 
  

B
ro

a
d

b
a
n

d
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 t
o
 b

e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e

d
 w

it
h
 B

T
 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

 a
t 

D
a
lt
o
n
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 B

ri
d
g
e

 w
o
rk

s
. 

 
 

Page 7



P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 

1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

O
th

e
r 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 i
te

m
s

 o
f 

in
te

re
s

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 d
u

ri
n

g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 &

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 

 

D
a
lt

o
n

 B
ri

d
g

e
 –

 
k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
a
c
ti

v
it

y
 

 


 

M
a
n
a

g
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

n
ts

, 
re

v
ie

w
 t

e
n
d

e
r 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

, 
d
e
a

l 
w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
n
ts

, 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
 


 

R
e
v
ie

w
 l
o

a
n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 d

e
e
d
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

s
ti
ll 

m
e
e
ts

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 H
D

C
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 


 

M
e
e
t 

w
it
h
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
, 

p
re

p
a
re

 u
ti
lit

ie
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 w
it
h
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
iv

e
rs

io
n
s
 


 

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
t 
p

la
n
, 
e

n
s
u
re

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 c
a
n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 w

it
h

in
 b

u
d
g
e
t 


 

P
re

p
a
re

 a
n

d
 S

u
b
m

it
 P

ro
je

c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 £
3
8

5
,0

0
0
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 


 

M
e
e
t 

a
ll 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 o

n
 N

Y
C

C
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
b
ri
e
f 

th
e

m
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 D

a
lt
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 


 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 C

le
v
e
la

n
d
 S

te
e
l 
a
n
d
 T

u
b
e
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 l
a
n

d
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 


 

R
e
v
ie

w
 L

E
P

 f
u
n
d

in
g
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
, 
a
tt

e
n
d

 N
Y

C
C

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 t
o
 w

it
n

e
s
s
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e

 o
f 

L
E

P
 g

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
£
1
.8

m
 


 

S
e
c
u
re

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
 f
ro

m
 N

Y
C

C
 t
o
 f

u
tu

re
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 


 

M
a
n
a

g
e
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
s
 w

it
h
 N

Y
C

C
 ,

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 o
f 

N
Y

C
C

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n

d
 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
s
ig

n
 o

ff
 o

f 
o
u
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

n
ts

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 


 

M
a
n
a

g
e
 B

ID
 B

a
llo

t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
s
e
c
u
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 b

a
llo

t 
o
u

tc
o
m

e
; 
re

v
ie

w
 B

ID
c
o

 A
rt

ic
le

s
 o

f 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
 


 

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
in

w
a
rd

 i
n

v
e
s
to

r 
a

t 
D

a
lt
o

n
 a

n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

o
rk

s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e

 D
a
lt
o
n
 

B
ri
d

g
e
 a

n
d
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
 S

c
h
e

m
e
. 


 

P
re

p
a
re

 t
h
e

 N
Y

C
C

 G
a
te

w
a

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
; 
re

v
ie

w
 N

Y
C

C
 S

e
c
ti
o
n

 2
7

8
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 i
n
p
u
ts

 f
ro

m
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 


 

P
re

p
a
re

 l
a
n
d
 l
ic

e
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
 d

u
ri

n
g
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 


 

P
re

p
a
re

 f
o
r 

h
a
n
d

o
v
e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
to

 N
Y

C
C

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 t
h
e

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

h
a
s
e
s
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

 


 

A
tt
e

n
d
in

g
 G

ra
n
t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 


 

C
o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 a

 G
ra

d
e

 I
I 
L

is
te

d
 B

u
ild

in
g
 A

t 
R

is
k
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

n
 L

e
e
m

in
g
 B

a
r 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 H

o
u

s
e
, 

w
it
h
 W

R
A

’s
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 

w
ro

te
 s

u
b
s
e

q
u
e

n
t 
re

p
o
rt

 o
n

 t
h
is

 


 

M
e
t 

w
it
h
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

fo
r 

A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
H

e
ri
ta

g
e

 F
u
n

d
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

L
e
e
m

in
g
 B

a
r 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 
H

o
u
s
e

 


 

W
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 V

ir
g

in
ia

 A
rr

o
w

s
m

it
h
 (

E
d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

W
R

A
) 

to
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

 h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
fo

r 
L
 B

a
r 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 H

o
u
s
e
 

(W
R

A
’s

 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 h
a
v
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

d
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
ti
m

e
s
) 

to
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

to
 H

L
F

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 


 

A
tt
e

n
d
e

d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 D

a
rl

in
g
to

n
 C

o
lle

g
e
 C

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

, 
W

e
b
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 


 

W
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 D

a
v
id

 W
a
lk

e
r 

to
 d

e
s
ig

n
 c

a
te

ri
n
g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
(W

R
A

’s
 a

s
p

ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 h
a
v
e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
d
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
ti
m

e
s
) 

–
 a

p
p
ly

in
g
 f

o
r 

P
T

C
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 


 

P
u
tt

in
g

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
P

a
ri

s
h
 a

n
d
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 i
n
 a

n
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 
to

 b
u

ild
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 ‘
b
u

y
-i

n
’ 
fo

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 

  
 

Page 8



P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 

1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 –
 E

n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
  

P
u

rp
o

s
e
: 

  

-
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 h

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e

llb
e
in

g
 o

f 
p
e

o
p

le
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

e
v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
s
 

-
 

T
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

c
o
n
s
u
m

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 h

e
a

lt
h
 r

is
k
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 

h
a

z
a
rd

o
u
s
 f

o
o
d
, 
d
ri

n
k
 a

n
d

 w
a
te

rs
 s

u
p
p

lie
s
. 

-
 

T
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 h

a
z
a
rd

o
u
s
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 i
n
 

p
ri
v
a
te

ly
 r

e
n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

: 
  

-
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 r
a
te

s
 &

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 h

e
a
lt
h

 

-
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 h

e
a

lt
h
 t
h
re

a
te

n
in

g
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 

-
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 &

 w
e

llb
e
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

v
e
n
ts

, 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 &

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

-
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

h
ild

 s
a
fe

ty
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 t
o
 s

w
im

 

-
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
h
e
s
io

n
 &

 q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

-
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

h
y
g

ie
n
e
 i
n
 f

o
o
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

-
 

R
e
d
u
c
e

d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 r

is
k
 d

u
e
 t
o

 n
o
n

-c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
ri

v
a
te

 w
a

te
r 

s
u
p
p
lie

s
 

-
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ri

v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 h

e
a
lt
h

 &
 f

it
n

e
s
s
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 b
a
s
e
 o

f 
2
,6

4
5
  

2
,6

4
5
 

2
,7

1
9
 

2
,7

1
9
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 a

b
o

v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 Q
2

 a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 s

a
le

s
 

ta
rg

e
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 f
o
r 

H
e
a

lt
h
 &

 F
it
n

e
s
s
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

fl
u
c
tu

a
te

s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e

 y
e
a
r;

 t
h

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
7

 i
s
 2

,7
0
8

. 
  

W
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

 d
ro

p
-o

ff
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 n

o
w

 a
n
d
 D

e
c
 ’
1
6
 a

n
d
 

g
ro

w
th

 J
a

n
 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

7
. 

 

O
u
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 b
a
s
e

 i
s
 1

5
1
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 

la
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 £
2
.6

9
m

 o
f 

le
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
  

£
2

.6
9
m

 
£

1
.3

4
m

 
£

1
.9

6
1

m
 

In
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t.
 D

ir
e
c
tl
y
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 k

e
y
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 F
it
n
e
s
s
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 b
a
s
e

. 
 

(E
S

T
) 

P
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
Q

1
=

 £
6
1
9

K
, 
Q

2
=

 
£
6
6
2

K
, 
Q

3
 =

 £
6
2

0
K

, 
Q

4
 =

 £
7
8
7

K
. 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 2

,5
9
0

 j
u
n
io

r 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 ‘
L

e
a
rn

2
 S

w
im

’ 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

2
,5

9
0
 

2
,6

0
2
 

2
,6

0
2
 

A
ll 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
, 
h

a
d
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

d
ip

 o
n
 l
e
a
rn

e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s

 

 
 

Page 9



P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 

1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

E
n
a

b
le

 5
0

0
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

e
o
p

le
 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 n

e
w

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 v

e
n
u

e
s
 

5
0

0
 

4
7

6
 

6
8

5
 

C
e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

a
n
c
e
 –

 3
5
; 

M
u
lt
i-

S
p
o
rt

 –
 1

3
; 

B
o
c
c
ia

 
–
 1

2
: 

P
ri
m

e
ti
m

e
 –

 1
0
3
; 

P
a
rk

 R
u
n
 –

 1
9
8

; 
S

p
o
rt

s
 

C
lu

b
s
 –

 1
9

; 
S

p
o
rt

in
g
 m

e
m

o
ri
e
s
 –

 4
3
; 
R

u
n
n

in
g

 
C

lu
b
s
 (

S
to

k
e
s
le

y
 a

n
d

 E
a
s
in

g
w

o
ld

) 
1
9

; 
A

b
ili

ty
 D

a
y
 –

 
2
0
; 
T

ri
C

lu
b
 –

 3
4
  

S
o
m

e
 e

v
e

n
ts

 a
re

 s
e

a
s
o
n
a

l 
w

it
h
 m

o
re

 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

th
e
re

fo
re

 p
ro

fi
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

is
 Q

1
=

 7
5
, 

Q
2
 

=
 1

7
5
, 
Q

3
 =

 1
7
5

 a
n

d
 Q

4
 =

 7
5
. 
  

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 6
0

0
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 t

o
 T

a
k
e
 T

h
a
t 
S

te
p
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

6
0

0
 

1
4

1
 

2
8

1
 

V
e
ry

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 b
a

s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 

M
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 

U
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 N

o
rt

h
 

Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

H
a
m

b
le

to
n
, 

R
ic

h
m

o
n
d
s
h
ir
e

 &
 W

h
it
b

y
 C

a
re

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p

 (
C

C
G

).
 C

lo
s
e
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

in
 

Q
3
. 
 

A
w

a
it
 c

la
ri

fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 

C
C

G
 f

u
n
d
in

g
. 

A
llo

c
a
te

 £
1

7
5
,0

0
0
 t

o
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
  

£
1

7
5

,0
0

0
 

£
4

9
,0

1
4
 

£
4

9
,0

1
4
 

S
m

a
ll 

g
ra

n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 -

 £
5
0
k
 f
u
n
d
; 

 

M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 G

ra
n
ts

 -
 £

1
2
5
k
 f

u
n
d
. 

 

C
lo

s
e
 t

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 

- 
n

o
 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
. 

 

P
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
 Q

1
=

 £
4

9
K

, 
Q

2
 =

 £
0
k
, 
Q

3
 =

 £
1
2
5

K
 

a
n
d
 Q

4
 =

 £
1
k
. 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

9
0

%
 o

f 
S

e
c
ti
o
n

 1
0
6
 f

u
n

d
s
 a

re
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
a
n

y
 

g
iv

e
n
 t

im
e
  

9
0

%
 

9
8

.7
%

 

[£
2

6
,3

7
5

.2
0

 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 

£
1

,6
6
0

.1
0

  
re

c
e

iv
e

d
] 

9
8

.7
%

 

[£
2

,8
1
4

,2
8
5

.2
2
 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 /
 

£
2

,8
4
9

,6
8
2

.1
0

 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
] 

In
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
o
ta

l 
fu

n
d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
1

2
 

 
 

Page 10



P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 

1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

E
n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 f
o
o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

7
9

%
  

[2
5
1
/3

1
7
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 

in
s
p
e
c
te

d
] 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

re
v
is

e
d

 t
o

 
[3

1
7

 /
 4

0
0
 ]

 
fr

o
m

 Q
2
 

6
9

%
  

  
[8

0
/1

1
6

] 

 

7
0

%
  

[1
3

9
/1

9
9

] 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 K

P
I 
fo

r 
2
0
1

6
/1

7
 f

o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 a

 m
o
re

 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 m

e
th

o
d
 o

f 
c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

s
in

c
e
 Q

1
 f

ig
u
re

s
 w

e
re

 r
e

p
o

rt
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 
p
ro

fi
le

 f
o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

a
re

 c
o

n
s
e
q
u
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
s
ta

te
d

 
w

it
h
 e

ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 Q
2
. 
  

T
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 p
ro

fi
le

 t
a
k
e
s
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
e

 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g
e

 
o
f 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 m
o
re

 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
re

m
a
in

s
 a

t 
7

9
%

 o
f 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
, 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 

p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

3
1

7
 o

u
t 
o
f 

4
0

0
 a

c
tu

a
l 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 

(o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 2
5

1
/3

1
7
).

  
 

P
ro

fi
le

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 :
 Q

1
 -

  
8
3
, 

 Q
2
 -

 1
1
6
, 

Q
3
 -

 1
0
7
, 
Q

4
 -

 
9
4

 

E
n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 p
ri
v
a
te

 w
a
te

r 
s
u

p
p

ly
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

9
5

%
 

9
0

%
 

[9
/1

0
] 

9
0

%
 

[9
/1

0
] 

A
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

P
ri
v
a
te

 W
a
te

r 
S

u
p
p

ly
 

(P
W

S
) 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
5
 y

e
a
rs

. 
W

e
 a

re
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 5

 y
e

a
r 

p
h
a
s
e
 s

in
c
e
 t
h

e
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

u
t 

w
e
 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

5
 y

e
a
r 

p
h

a
s
e
. 

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 3

1
/1

2
/2

0
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

e
a
n
 w

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 w

it
h

in
 

3
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 d

u
e
 d

a
te

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o

 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
. 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 1
0

0
%

 r
e
s
o

lu
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 o
n

 p
ri

v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
ri

o
u
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 h

a
z
a
rd

 w
it
h
in

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 d

a
te

 a
g
re

e
d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 l
a

n
d
lo

rd
 

9
0

%
 

7
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
  

  
(1

0
0

%
) 

7
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
  

  
(1

0
0

%
) 

 

 O
th

e
r 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 i
te

m
s

 o
f 

in
te

re
s

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 d
u

ri
n

g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
  

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

B
u

ri
a
ls

 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
 f

o
r 

fu
n
e
ra

l 
d

ir
e
c
to

r 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
d
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
a

p
p

o
in

te
d
. 

Page 11



P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 

1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

O
th

e
r 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 i
te

m
s

 o
f 

in
te

re
s

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 d
u

ri
n

g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
  

 
L

a
n

d
lo

rd
s
 F

o
ru

m
 

L
a
n
d

lo
rd

s
 F

o
ru

m
 a

tt
e
n
d
e

d
 a

n
d
 b

ri
e
fi
n

g
 n

o
te

 g
iv

e
n
 o

n
 L

e
g

io
n

n
a
ir

e
s
’ 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t.

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 

F
o

o
d

 H
y
g

ie
n

e
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
re

c
ru

it
e
d

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 f

o
o
d
 h

y
g

ie
n
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v

ie
w

 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o
 f

o
o
d

 i
n
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
, 
c
o
s
m

e
ti
c
 p

ie
rc

in
g

, 
c
a
ra

v
a
n
 s

it
e
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
, 
p
ri

v
a
te

 w
a
te

r 
s
u

p
p
lie

s
 a

n
d
 

a
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
. 

 
S

a
fe

ty
 A

d
v

is
o

ry
 

G
ro

u
p

 
S

a
fe

ty
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

e
re

 h
e
ld

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

 p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 N

-F
e
s
t 
in

 N
o
rt

h
a
lle

rt
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 

p
a
rt

y
 i
n
 L

e
n

th
o
r 

F
a
rm

, 
B

ro
m

p
to

n
. 

 
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

N
o

is
e

 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
n

o
is

e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

o
v
e
r 

1
2

 d
a

y
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 a

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 R

ip
o
n
 

Q
u
a
rr

y
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 

o
n
g
o

in
g

 n
o

is
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 f

a
ilu

re
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
. 

L
e
is

u
re

 &
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

s
 

S
e

v
e
n

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 t
e
a
m

 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 
S

w
im

m
in

g
 P

il
o

t 
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 S

p
o
rt

s
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 o

n
 a

 f
u
n
d

e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
im

e
d
 a

t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 

  
 

Page 12



P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 

1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 –
 C

a
ri

n
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 

P
u

rp
o

s
e
: 

  

-
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

-
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 

-
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 C

O
2
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

: 
  

-
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

o
u
n
d
s
 w

it
h
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 f

le
e

t 

-
 

D
e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
a
n

d
fi
ll 

w
a
s
te

 

-
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

  

-
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
ti
n

g
 o

f 
9
0
%

 f
o
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

9
0

%
 

8
1

%
 

8
0

%
 

C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t

o
 b

e
 r

u
n
 d

u
ri
n

g
  
2

0
1
8

 o
n
c
e

 
th

e
 n

e
w

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 g

re
e

n
 w

a
s
te

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 

U
n
ti
l 
th

e
n
 G

o
v
M

e
tr

ic
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d
, 

h
o

w
e
v
e
r 

it
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 n
o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 d
e
ta

il 
is

 n
o
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o

le
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

o
w

n
 d

u
e
 t
o
 p

o
o
r 

W
e
b
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

ra
te

s
 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
2
8
%

, 
M

a
y
 8

1
%

, 
J
u
n
e
 4

6
%

. 
 Q

2
 r

e
s
u

lt
 

J
u
ly

 7
6
%

, 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
8

6
%

, 
S

e
p
t 
7
3
%

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
k
e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 w

a
s
te

 t
o

 4
1

2
 k

g
/p

e
r 

h
e
a
d

/y
e

a
r 

b
y
 2

0
1

7
. 

 

4
1

2
k
g
 

1
2

0
k
g

 e
s
t 

2
2

8
k
g

 (
e
s
t)
 

4
1
2
k
g
 p

e
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 
 Q

tr
 1

 a
n

d
 Q

tr
 

2
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
n
n

a
g
e
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 m

o
re

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 /

 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n
 r

e
fu

s
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
. 
N

e
w

 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

l 
s
u
rg

e
 a

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
. 
  

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
la

c
e
n
c
y
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
; 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

in
 h

a
n
d

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

 t
o
 5

3
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
7
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
) 

5
3
%

 
5

1
%

 (
e
s
t)
 

5
4

.6
%

 (
e

s
t)
 

Q
1
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 =

 5
6
%

  
/ 
a
c
tu

a
l 
=

 5
7
.9

%
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 
re

fu
s
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 s

ta
g

e
s
 o

f 
ro

u
te

 o
p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n

 b
y
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6

 

1
0

0
%

 

D
e
c
 2

0
1

6
 

5
%

 (
e
s
t)
 

3
0

%
  

S
ta

g
e

 1
/2

 
S

ta
g

e
 1

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
ll 

d
o

m
e
s
ti
c
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

n
to

 
k
e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 -
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

2
5
%

) 
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 a
c
tu

a
l 
d

a
ta

 v
e
ri

fi
c
a
ti
o
n

, 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
p
ti
m

is
e
d
 r

o
u

n
d
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

p
e
ra

to
r 

d
ry

 r
u
n

 -
 (

2
5

%
) 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 m

a
p
p
in

g
, 
1
 r

o
u
n

d
 d

ra
ft

, 
d
ry

 r
u
n

 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
  

S
ta

g
e
 3

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
e

w
 r

o
u

n
d
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h

 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 -

 n
o
t 
s
ta

rt
e

d
 

(5
0
%

).
 

Page 13



P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 b

y
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 e

n
e
rg

y
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 1

0
0
,0

0
0

K
w

h
 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

K
w

h
 

1
9

,2
5
8

 K
w

h
 

2
1

,6
4
8

 K
w

h
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

E
D

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 e

n
e
rg

y
 i
n

v
e
n

to
ry

 a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 (

E
A

C
).

  

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 E

A
C

 0
1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 -

 9
8
9

,3
6

4
. 

P
ro

fi
le

 Q
1
 =

 0
, 
Q

2
 =

 2
0
,0

0
0

, 
Q

3
 =

 3
0
,0

0
0

, 
Q

4
 =

 
5
0
,0

0
0

 

  O
th

e
r 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 i
te

m
s

 o
f 

in
te

re
s

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 P

u
rp

o
s
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 

D
e

s
ig

n
 &

 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 

E
v

e
n

ts
 

N
o
rt

h
a

lle
rt

o
n
 C

a
rn

iv
a

l 
h

e
ld

 o
n
 A

p
p

le
g

a
rt

h
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

; 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 S
to

k
e
s
le

y
 s

h
o

w
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
. 

W
a

s
te

 &
 S

tr
e

e
t 

S
c

e
n

e
 

W
a
S

S
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 a

h
e
a

d
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
, 
ro

u
te

 o
p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o

n
, 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 

Page 14



 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 –
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
P

la
c
e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

 

P
u

rp
o

s
e
: 

  

-
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
e
q
u

a
te

 a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

-
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

-
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p

le
 t

o
 l
e
a

d
 i
n
d
e

p
e
n
d

e
n
t 

liv
e
s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

: 
  

-
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 s

it
e
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 
a
n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

-
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 m

ix
  

-
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
tl
y
 

-
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

M
a
in

ta
in

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 5
 y

e
a
r 

s
u
p
p

ly
 o

f 
d
e

liv
e
ra

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

s
it
e
s
  

5
 y

rs
 

>
5

 y
rs

 
>

5
 y

rs
 

T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 L

a
n

d
 A

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

c
o
n
fi
rm

s
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 7

.9
 y

e
a
rs

 s
u
p
p

ly
. 

  

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 e

v
e
ry

 s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

1
2
0

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 2

0
 r

u
ra

l)
 

1
2

0
 

(1
0

0
%

) 

2
4
 

 

6
7
 

[5
6

%
] 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

6
 

u
n
it
s
 

a
t 

S
o
u
th

 
B

a
c
k
 

L
a
n
e
 

S
ti
lli

n
g
to

n
, 

6
 u

n
it
s
 a

t 
L
e
e
m

in
g
 G

a
te

, 
L

e
e
m

in
g
 B

a
r,

 6
 

u
n
it
s
 

a
t 

S
o

w
e
rb

y
 

G
a

te
w

a
y
, 

6
 

u
n
it
s
 

a
t 

S
ti
lli

n
g
to

n
 

R
o
a
d
 E

a
s
in

g
w

o
ld

. 

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

2
0

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
 r

u
ra

l 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 

2
0
 

(1
0

0
%

) 

1
2

  
  

3
7
 

[1
8

5
%

] 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
6
 u

n
it
s
 a

t 
S

ti
lli

n
g
to

n
 a

n
d
 6

 u
n

it
s
 a

t 
L
e
e
m

in
g
 
B

a
r,

 
a

ll 
o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 
w

e
re

 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 g

a
in

. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d

 o
p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 
L
o
c
a
l 
P

la
n
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6

 

1
0

0
%

  

D
e
c
 2

0
1

6
 

0
%

 
0

%
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

to
 

g
o
 

to
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

fo
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
o

n
 

1
8
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1

6
. 

C
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

n
o
t 

s
c
h
e
d

u
le

d
 

to
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 u

n
ti
l 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
6

 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 7
0
%

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 e

n
q
u

ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
s
  

7
0

%
 

7
7

.5
%

 

(6
2

 o
u

t 
o

f 
8

0
) 

7
7

.6
%

 

[1
7

0
 o

u
t 

o
f 

2
1

9
] 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

 f
o
o
tf

a
ll 

o
f 

6
6
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

h
a
v
e
 1

4
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

In
 

a
d
d

it
io

n
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 

6
2
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n
s
, 

F
o
u
n
d

a
ti
o
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 5

7
p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n
s
 i

n
 Q

2
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
A

B
 1

2
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

(D
IS

C
) 

w
o

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 H
o
m

e
le

s
s
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 

1
s
t 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1

6
 

a
n

d
 

w
ill

 
b
e
g

in
 s

u
p

p
ly

in
g
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o

n
 f

ig
u
re

s
. 

 
 

Page 15



 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

£
2

7
0
k
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 D

is
a

b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

G
ra

n
ts

 a
p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
  

(I
n

 A
u

g
u
s
t 
2

0
1

6
 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 B
e

tt
e

r 
C

a
re

 F
u

n
d
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 d

if
fe

re
n

tl
y
 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
D

F
G

 a
m

o
u

n
t 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
  

T
h
is

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e
d

 i
n

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
u
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 
u

p
w

a
rd

 r
e
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
th

e
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
to

 £
3
7

6
k
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 Q

2
) 

£
2
7
0
k
 

(1
0
0
%

) 
 

re
v
is

e
d
 t
o
 

£
3
7
6
k
 

(1
0
0
%

) 
fr

o
m

 
Q

2
 

£
4
4
,7

7
1

 

(£
2
0
,9

4
3
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 

£
2
3
,8

2
8
 

s
p
e
n
t)

 

(5
2
%

) 

£
1
4
1

,9
4

3
 

(£
9
9
,0

4
8
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 

£
4
2
,8

9
5
 

s
p
e
n
t)

 

T
h
e
 f

ig
u
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i

n
 Q

2
 i

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
‘C

o
m

m
it
te

d
’ 

fl
u
c
tu

a
te

s
 d

e
p

e
n
d

in
g
 o

n
 c

lie
n
ts

’ 
n
e
e

d
s
 

e
.g

. 
c
lie

n
t 

m
o
v
e
 
to

 
a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

o
r 

d
e
a
th

 m
a

y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n
 w

o
rk

s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
n
c
e

lle
d
. 

In
 

th
is

 
q
u

a
rt

e
r 

8
 

a
d
a

p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

(s
p
e
n

t 
£
4
2
,8

9
5
) 

1
1
 a

d
a
p

ta
ti
o
n
s
 (

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 £

9
9
,0

4
8
) 

T
h
e
 

D
F

G
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

to
 

£
3
7

6
k
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

a
s
s
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
e
x
tr

a
 m

o
n
e

y
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

B
e
tt

e
r 

C
a
re

 F
u
n
d
. 

T
h
e
 H

o
m

e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 

h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t
h

is
. 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 n

e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
c
la

im
s
 w

it
h

in
 2

0
 d

a
y
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 N

o
rt

h
 

Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
  

2
0
 d

a
y
s
 

2
4
 d

a
y
s
 

2
0
.6

 
d
a

y
s
 

S
ta

ff
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 

h
a

v
e

 
o
c
c
u
rr

e
d
 

in
 

Q
2

 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
a
s
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
a
c
te

d
 
b

y
 
th

e
 
d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 
in

 
b
e

in
g
 
a
b
le

 
to

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
g

e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

. 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 n

e
w

 c
o

u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 c

la
im

s
 w

it
h

in
 2

0
 d

a
y
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 N

o
rt

h
 

Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

2
0
 d

a
y
s
 

2
6
.3

9
 

d
a

y
s
 

2
2
.5

4
 

d
a

y
s
 

S
ta

ff
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 

h
a

v
e

 
o
c
c
u
rr

e
d
 

in
 

Q
2

 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
a
s
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
a
c
te

d
 
b

y
 
th

e
 
d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 
in

 
b
e

in
g
 
a
b
le

 
to

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
g

e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

. 
T

h
e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

C
re

d
it
 h

a
s
 i

m
p
a
c
te

d
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 
a
re

 u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 i

n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
fo

r 
a
 
p
e
ri
o
d
 
o

f 
3
0
 
d
a

y
s
, 

d
u
e
 
to

 
D

W
P

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 

ti
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 
re

c
e
iv

in
g

 
n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 e

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
. 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
c
h

a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 7
 d

a
y
s
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 N

o
rt

h
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

7
 d

a
y
s
 

7
.5

2
 d

a
y
s
 

5
.4

 d
a

y
s
 

 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
 w

it
h

in
 7

 d
a

y
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 N

o
rt

h
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 

7
 d

a
y
s
 

6
.5

 d
a

y
s
 

4
.9

3
 d

a
y
s
 

 

 
 

Page 16



 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
  

Y
T

D
 

Q
2
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 /
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

T
o
 d

e
te

c
t 
a
n

d
 p

re
v
e

n
t 
th

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
a

n
d
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 

fr
a
u
d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

£
5

0
,0

0
0
. 

£
5
0
,0

0
0

 
£
0
.0

0
 

£
1
6
.8

3
 

T
h
is

 
ta

rg
e
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 

s
e
t 

a
t 

£
5

0
k
 

w
it
h
 

th
e

 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 

th
a
t 

fr
a
u
d
 

a
n
d
 

e
rr

o
r 

w
o

u
ld

 
b
e

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 a

n
d
 l
im

it
e
d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t.

 

V
e
ri
ta

u
 

h
o

ld
s
 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 

fr
a
u
d

 
in

 
th

e
s
e
 

a
re

a
s
 

a
n
d
 

th
e

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n
 

ru
n

n
in

g
 

fo
r 

a
 

y
e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

to
 

S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
. 

 
A

n
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 i

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
y
 t

h
e

 
fr

a
u
d
 a

n
d
 
e
rr

o
r 

d
e
te

c
ti
o

n
 
h
a
s
 f

a
lle

n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

b
e
lo

w
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h
ils

t 
th

is
 

a
re

a
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 

o
u
ts

o
u
rc

e
d
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
. 

 N
o

te
: 

 
T

h
e
s
e
 t
a

b
le

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 p

e
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 w
h
e
re

a
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 i
s
 t
h
e

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 f
ig

u
re

 a
t 

e
a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 h
e

n
c
e
 t
h

e
 

fi
g
u
re

s
 m

a
y
 d

if
fe

r 
s
lig

h
tl
y
. 

 N
E

W
 C

L
A

IM
S

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
 T

IM
E

S
 i

n
 d

a
y
s

 (
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

) 

N
o

rt
h

 Y
o

rk
s
 

R
e
g

io
n

 
2
0
1
5
-1

6
  

Q
1
 

Q
2
 

Q
3
 

Q
4
 

C
/T

a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 
C

/T
a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 
C

/T
a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 
C

/T
a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 
C

/T
a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 

C
ra

v
e

n
 

2
3

.8
0
 

2
4

.7
3
 

2
7

.9
2
 

2
9

.9
6
 

2
5

.0
5
 

3
0

.1
1
 

 
 

 
 

H
a
rr

o
g

a
te

 
2

0
.2

5
 

1
8

.2
6
 

2
1

.6
0
 

2
0

.8
6
 

1
0

.2
2
 

2
3

.1
5
 

 
 

 
 

H
A

M
B

L
E

T
O

N
 

2
4
.7

3
 

2
0
.7

3
 

1
8

.9
8
 

1
7

.4
6
 

2
6

.3
9
 

2
4

.0
4
 

 
 

 
 

S
c
a

rb
o

ro
u

g
h
 

1
4

.5
6
 

1
7

.2
4
 

1
8

.1
3
 

2
0

.6
3
 

1
5

.3
5
 

1
7

.6
2
 

 
 

 
 

S
e

lb
y
 

2
1

.2
1
 

2
0

.8
8
 

2
2

.6
4
 

1
8

.8
2
 

1
9

.6
6
 

1
9

.7
7
 

 
 

 
 

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
s
h

ir
e
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

2
1

.9
3
 

1
9

.5
8
 

2
4

.5
1
 

1
8

.8
6
 

 
 

 
 

R
y
e

d
a

le
 

2
4

.4
6
 

1
9

.5
0
 

2
3

.9
0
 

3
0

.9
9
 

8
.5

8
 

3
6

.0
8
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

Page 17



 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
1
4
 

1
7
1
1
1
6
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2

0
1
6

-1
7
 Q

2
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

.d
o
c
x
 

C
H

A
N

G
E

 I
N

 C
IR

C
U

M
S

T
A

N
C

E
S

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
 T

IM
E

S
 i

n
 d

a
y
s

 (
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 a

rr
e

a
rs

) 

N
o

rt
h

 Y
o

rk
s
 

R
e
g

io
n

 
2
0
1
5
-1

6
 

Q
1
 

Q
2
 

Q
3
 

Q
4
 

C
/T

a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 
C

/T
a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 
C

/T
a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 
C

/T
a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 
C

/T
a
x

 
H

/B
e
n

e
fi

t 

C
ra

v
e

n
 

4
.4

7
 

4
.1

8
 

4
.5

0
 

5
.1

4
 

6
.6

0
 

5
.2

8
 

 
 

 
 

H
a
rr

o
g

a
te

 
5

.8
6
 

3
.9

7
 

7
.3

6
 

5
.8

5
 

5
.0

3
 

5
.4

4
 

 
 

 
 

H
A

M
B

L
E

T
O

N
 

3
.4

4
 

3
.2

6
 

3
.7

0
 

3
.8

4
 

6
.5

0
 

7
.5

2
 

 
 

 
 

S
c
a

rb
o

ro
u

g
h
 

3
.7

8
 

2
.9

3
 

5
.4

1
 

5
.5

5
 

4
.9

9
 

5
.6

4
 

 
 

 
 

S
e

lb
y
 

3
.8

5
 

3
.4

9
 

3
.5

1
 

5
.1

7
 

4
.7

2
 

5
.2

9
 

 
 

 
 

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
s
h

ir
e
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

3
.5

0
 

4
.1

0
 

4
.0

5
 

3
.9

1
 

 
 

 
 

R
y
e

d
a

le
 

2
.6

2
 

3
.2

3
 

3
.3

8
 

4
.3

8
 

6
.2

0
 

6
.8

2
 

 
 

 
 

 O
th

e
r 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 i
te

m
s

 o
f 

in
te

re
s

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 d
u

ri
n

g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 

W
a
s
te

 &
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
e
n

e
 (

W
a
S

S
) 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

re
e
n
 w

a
s
te

 c
h

a
rg

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

&
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
n
q
u

ir
ie

s
 p

lu
s
 g

ra
p

h
ic

s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 u
p

d
a
ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

, 
F

A
Q

’s
, 
b

in
 t

a
g
 a

n
d
 l
ic

e
n
c
e
 s

e
tt

in
g

, 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
s
e
m

in
a
r 

a
n

d
 p

a
ri

s
h
 l
ia

is
o
n
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 &

 p
u
b

lic
 d

is
p

la
y
s
. 

IC
T

  
D

a
lt

o
n

 B
ID

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

 s
o

lu
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 D

a
lt
o
n
 B

id
 u

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
e
n
t 

liv
e

 o
n
 1

s
t 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

C
y
b

e
r 

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

  
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 C

y
b

e
r 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 I
n
c
id

e
n
t 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y
 t

o
 p

re
p

a
re

 H
a
m

b
le

to
n
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h
 C

y
b

e
r 

A
tt

a
c
k
 

S
e
rv

e
r 

R
o

o
m

 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

N
e

w
 S

e
rv

e
r 

R
o
o

m
 p

ro
je

c
t,
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 c

o
n
ta

in
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n

d
 f

lo
o
r 

in
 C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
d
a
ta

 c
a
b
le

 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o
n

 

L
e
g

a
l 

B
e
n

e
fi

t 
F

ra
u

d
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b
e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

a
u
d
 c

o
n
v
ic

ti
o

n
: 
d

e
fe

n
d
a
n

t 
s
e
n
te

n
c
e
d
 t
o

 a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

rd
e
r 

a
n

d
 a

 c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

rd
e
r 

a
n

d
 

c
o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

T
a
x
i 
L

ic
e
n

s
in

g
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
fe

n
d

e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
 H

e
a
ri
n

g
s
 P

a
n
e

l 
to

 s
u
s
p

e
n

d
 a

 t
a
x
i 
d
ri

v
e
r 

a
t 
th

e
 M

a
g

is
tr

a
te

s
 C

o
u
rt

 
a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 c

o
s
ts

. 
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

R
u

ra
l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

E
n

a
b

le
r 

e
v

e
n

ts
 

‘B
u

ild
in

g
 o

n
 S

h
if
ti
n
g
 S

a
n

d
s
’ 
 S

u
b
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 
R

u
ra

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 E

n
a
b

le
r 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

t 
H

u
tt
o
n
 R

u
d
b

y
 -

 2
9
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

6
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti

o
n

s
 

T
e
a
m

 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 l
a

w
 u

p
d

a
te

s
 2

6
th

 a
n
d

 2
8
th

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

6
 

R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s
 &

 
B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 T

a
x
 

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 (
C

T
R

) 
2
0
1
7

/1
8

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

C
T

R
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
7
/1

8
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

. 
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
ile

d
 f

o
r 

Q
3

 

 

Page 18



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to: Scrutiny Committee
17 November 2016

Subject: REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

All Wards

1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:

1.1 The Council has a robust risk management process in place which includes a 
comprehensive risk register.  The register captures all risks identified as presenting a threat 
or opportunity which may impact the Council’s service delivery.  At Hambleton District 
Council, risks on the register are recognised as being either strategic or operational in 
nature; operational risks are those affecting individual services and tend to involve the day 
to day running of those services, whilst strategic risks affect the whole Council and are wide 
reaching, both in terms of timescales and potential impact.

1.2 All risks are reviewed by the relevant service on a quarterly basis to reflect upon their 
appropriateness and the adequacy of the mitigating action plan.  Strategic risks and high 
level operational risks are also reviewed by Management Team and Heads of Service.  

1.3 To ensure that strategic risks are appropriately managed and that suitable actions are 
undertaken to mitigate the effect of each risk, Scrutiny Committee receive a quarterly report 
to monitor these.  Audit, Governance and Standards Committee also receive reports on 
strategic risks on an ad-hoc basis only if a change occurs.

1.4 The Council’s risk management process was audited during 2016/17 Q1 and as a result 
two key improvements have been introduced.  A complete review of the Council’s Risk 
Register was undertaken during Q2 in order to :

a) ensure all risks of a strategic nature are properly identified 
b) determine those risks pertaining specifically to Council projects

These improvements will enable future reporting to provide additional focus by clearly 
distinguishing Project risks, for enhanced monitoring, whilst also providing greater 
recognition and consequent management of key strategic risks.

1.5 Two Annexes are provided for review at Q2.  

Annex A Project Strategic Risks and Strategic Risks 2016/17 Q2  
Annex B Project Strategic risks and Strategic Risks 2016/17 Q2 highlighting the changes 

that have occurred during the quarter such as risks that have been closed, 
those with altered elements and new risks that have been identified 

2.0 RISK MANAGEMENT:

2.1 There are no risks associated with the recommendations of this report.

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS:

3.1 It is recommended that the Committee review the Annexes provided with the identified 
Project Strategic risks and the Strategic risks affecting the Council together with the actions 
that are in place to mitigate their potential impact.

LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE
HEAD OF FINANCE (S151 OFFICER)

Background Papers: Internal Audit Report - Annual Review of the Risk Management 
Strategy 
Department Quarterly Risk Register Review

Contact Author ref: Louise Branford-White
Head of Finance (s151 officer)
Direct Line No: (01609) 767024

Pam Channer
Performance & Improvement Officer
Direct Line No: (01609) 767034

Page 20



AN
N

EX
 A

H
D

C
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
ST

R
AT

EG
IC

 R
IS

K
S 

&
 S

TR
AT

EG
IC

 R
IS

K
S 

20
16

/1
7 

 Q
2

Ri
sk

 ID
Ri

sk
 N

am
e

M
an

da
to

ry
 

(c
an

no
t b

e 
cl

os
ed

)
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Ri

sk
O

rg
 

Le
ve

l
CP

 
Pr

io
rit

y
Ri

sk
 C

at
eg

or
y

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 
: 

Im
pa

ct
Sc

or
e

Ri
sk

 
Le

ve
l

Se
rv

ic
e

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

an
 

PR
O

JE
CT

 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 R

IS
KS

63
2

N
or

th
 N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 d

el
ay

ed
  o

r s
ta

lls
 c

om
pl

et
el

y,
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l's

 su
pp

ly
 o

f h
ou

sin
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d.

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
EV

Ec
on

om
ic

, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
5x

5
25

Hi
gh

Bu
sin

es
s &

 
Ec

on
om

y
Th

e 
sit

ua
tio

n 
is 

m
on

ito
re

d 
an

d 
re

gu
la

r c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r c
on

so
rt

iu
m

 a
nd

 st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

62
3

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 k
ey

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 to

 D
al

to
n 

In
du

st
ria

l E
st

at
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 

re
st

ric
te

d 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
.

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
EV

Ec
on

om
ic

, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
5x

4
20

Hi
gh

Bu
sin

es
s &

 
Ec

on
om

y
Su

bm
iss

io
n 

of
 £

1.
8m

 g
ra

nt
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
to

 L
EP

. C
om

m
itm

en
t f

or
m

 N
YC

C 
to

 
ov

er
se

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n.

61
5

In
ab

ili
ty

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 B

ed
al

e 
Ga

te
w

ay
 C

ar
 P

ar
k 

pr
oj

ec
t l

ea
ds

 to
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
lo

ss
 o

f v
isi

to
rs

 a
nd

 tr
ad

e.
Pr

oj
ec

t
St

ra
t

EV
Ec

on
om

ic
, 

Re
pu

ta
tio

na
l

3x
4

12
Hi

gh
De

sig
n 

 &
  

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (i
nc

l 
Pu

bl
ic

 L
ig

ht
in

g)

Ri
sk

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 C

ab
in

et
 2

 D
ec

 2
01

4.
 T

he
 ri

sk
 re

m
ai

ns
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

Be
da

le
 / 

Le
em

in
g 

Ba
r b

yp
as

s i
s c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s r
ev

ie
w

ed
 th

e 
ne

ed
 

fo
r a

 G
at

ew
ay

 C
ar

 P
ar

k,
 ti

m
es

ca
le

 e
nd

 2
01

6

71
8

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 se
cu

re
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ar

tn
er

 to
 re

de
ve

lo
p 

th
e 

pr
iso

n 
sit

e 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

Co
uc

il'
s o

bj
et

iv
es

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Ec

on
om

ic
, 

Re
pu

ta
tio

na
l

2x
5

10
M

ed
Co

rp
or

at
e 

Fi
na

nc
e

Pr
oj

ec
t t

ea
m

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 a
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t c

om
pe

tit
iv

e 
di

al
og

ue
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

ith
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 fi

na
nc

ia
l, 

le
ga

l &
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ad
vi

ce

69
9

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 S

po
rt

s V
ill

ag
e 

- F
un

di
ng

 P
la

n 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

re
so

ur
ce

d 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 a

s i
nt

en
de

d
Pr

oj
ec

t
St

ra
t

HW
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p/
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l, 

Cu
st

om
er

/C
iti

ze
n,

 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l

3x
3

9
M

ed
Le

isu
re

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

N
at

io
na

l g
ov

er
ni

ng
  b

oi
di

es
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
w

ith
 a

 n
ee

ds
 d

riv
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

pr
op

os
al

. 1
06

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t t

o 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
fu

nd
in

g

70
3

So
w

er
by

 S
po

rt
s V

ill
ag

e 
- F

un
di

ng
 P

la
n 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

su
ffi

ci
en

tly
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 a
s i

nt
en

de
d

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
HW

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p/

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l, 
Cu

st
om

er
/C

iti
ze

n,
 

Re
pu

ta
tio

na
l

3x
3

9
M

ed
Le

isu
re

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

N
at

io
na

l g
ov

er
ni

ng
 b

od
ie

s t
o 

be
 c

on
su

lte
d 

w
ith

 a
 n

ee
ds

 d
riv

en
, c

om
m

un
ity

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

pr
op

os
al

. 1
06

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t t

o 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
fu

nd
in

g

69
2

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
an

d 
tim

el
y 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

dv
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

W
AS

S 
Ro

ut
e 

O
pt

im
isa

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t c

ou
ld

 re
su

lt 
in

 W
AS

S 
m

an
ag

em
en

t n
ot

 c
or

re
ct

ly
 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
or

 re
de

pl
oy

in
g 

W
AS

S 
st

af
f. 

Th
is 

in
 tu

rn
 m

ay
 re

su
lt 

in
 g

rie
va

nc
es

 
fr

om
 th

e 
st

af
f o

r U
N

IS
O

N
 w

hi
ch

 m
ig

ht
 d

el
ay

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Ec

on
om

ic
, 

Re
pu

ta
tio

na
l

2x
3

6
M

ed
Hu

m
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
HR

 te
am

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
dv

ic
e 

is 
gi

ve
n 

in
 a

 ti
m

el
y 

an
d 

ac
cu

ra
te

 m
an

ne
r. 

Th
is 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 in

to
 th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Pl
an

 so
 th

at
 o

th
er

 w
or

k 
ca

n 
be

 
re

pr
io

rit
ise

d.
 If

 a
ny

 c
om

pl
ex

 m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

e 
fu

rt
he

r a
dv

ic
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

so
ug

ht

71
5

£2
5m

 lo
an

 to
 B

ro
ad

ac
re

s A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

fa
ils

 b
ec

au
se

 th
e 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 
re

qu
ire

s t
he

 lo
an

, o
r e

nc
ou

nt
er

s d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s i

n 
th

ei
r r

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
in

co
m

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 n

y 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s r

ed
uc

ed

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Fi

na
nc

ia
l

3x
1

3
Lo

w
Co

rp
or

at
e 

Fi
na

nc
e

En
su

re
 o

th
er

 in
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
 p

os
sib

ili
tie

s a
re

 b
ei

ng
 e

xp
lo

re
d 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
ba

la
nc

ed
 b

ud
ge

t; 
m

on
ito

r t
he

 th
ird

 p
ar

tie
s f

in
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

ey
 a

re
 

in
 a

 se
cu

re
  p

os
iti

on
 fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

to
 lo

an
 th

e 
m

on
ey

; m
ai

nt
ai

n 
go

od
 re

la
tio

ns
 

w
ith

 th
e 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

Al
so

 n
ot

e 
th

at
 th

e 
lo

an
 is

 se
cu

re
d 

w
ith

 th
ei

r h
ou

sin
g 

st
oc

k

ST
RA

TE
G

IC
 R

IS
KS

22
7

U
na

bl
e 

to
 a

cc
es

s H
DC

 se
rv

ic
es

 d
ue

 to
 in

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 b
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 p
la

ns
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 lo
ss

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
.

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p/
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l, 

Cu
st

om
er

/C
iti

ze
n,

 
Ec

on
om

ic
, 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l, 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l, 

He
al

th
 &

 
Sa

fe
ty

, L
eg

al
, 

Re
pu

ta
tio

na
l, 

So
ci

al

4x
5

20
Hi

gh
Cu

st
 S

er
vi

ce
s &

 
Co

m
m

s
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
ce

nt
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 V
er

ita
u 

an
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 to

 re
fr

es
h 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 B
us

in
es

s C
on

tin
ui

ty
 P

la
n 

at
 c

or
po

ra
te

 a
nd

 se
rv

ic
e 

le
ve

l h
as

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 T
hi

s w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e,

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

of
 b

us
in

es
s c

on
tin

ui
ty

 p
la

ns
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s;
 p

ro
vi

de
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f 
Bu

sin
es

s C
on

tin
ui

ty
 P

la
n 

/ D
isa

st
er

 R
ec

ov
er

 a
nd

 to
 c

la
rif

y 
re

sp
on

sib
ili

tie
s f

or
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

, H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

s;
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 sc
he

du
le

 
fo

r a
ut

ho
ris

in
g,

 te
st

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
Bu

sin
es

s C
on

tin
ui

ty
 P

la
ns

 a
nd

 D
isa

st
er

 
Re

co
ve

ry
. C

om
pl

et
e 

an
 in

te
rn

al
 re

vi
ew

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s,

 ri
sk

s a
nd

 a
gr

ee
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 to
 in

fo
rm

 B
us

in
es

s C
on

tin
ui

ty
 P

la
ns

, u
pd

at
in

g 
ris

k 
re

gi
st

er
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
 B

us
in

es
s C

on
tin

ui
ty

 P
la

n 
su

pp
or

t w
ith

 N
YC

C.
 

Ti
m

el
in

e 
fo

r d
el

iv
er

y 
is 

in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

67
7

Cy
be

r a
tt

ac
k 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 b

y 
us

er
 e

rr
or

 le
ad

s t
o 

lo
ss

 o
f k

ey
 IC

T 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 re
du

ce
d 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 IC
T 

Se
rv

ic
es

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
5x

3
15

Hi
gh

IC
T 

  (
in

c.
 

Re
pr

og
ra

ph
ic

s)
Co

m
pu

lsa
ry

 a
nn

ua
l C

yb
er

 S
ec

ur
ity

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r a

ll 
us

er
s,

 C
yb

er
 S

ec
ur

ity
 In

ci
de

nt
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

in
 p

la
ce

, a
ct

iv
el

y 
m

on
io

to
r a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 IC
T 

se
cu

rit
y 

po
lic

ie
s,

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 W
AR

P 
(W

ar
ni

ng
, A

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
Re

po
rt

in
g 

Po
in

t)
 to

 sh
ar

e 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 C

ou
nc

ils
, a

rr
an

ge
 IC

T 
st

af
f t

ra
in

in
g 

to
 k

ee
p 

up
 w

ith
 

th
e 

la
te

st
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

41
6

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 re

du
ct

io
ns

 in
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t g
ra

nt
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 th
e 

in
ab

ili
ty

 to
 

su
st

ai
n 

co
un

ci
l s

er
vi

ce
s a

t t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 le
ve

l.
St

ra
t

Co
rp

Fi
na

nc
ia

l, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
3x

4
12

Hi
gh

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Fi

na
nc

e
An

 o
n-

go
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

sa
vi

ng
 re

vi
ew

s t
ha

t e
ns

ur
es

 b
es

t 
va

lu
e 

is 
be

in
g 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
nd

 in
co

m
e 

is 
m

ax
im

ise
d.

 

A
nn

ex
 A

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

ro
j S

tra
t R

is
ks

 2
01

6-
17

 Q
2.

xl
sx

1/
2

08
/1

1/
16

Page 21



AN
N

EX
 A

H
D

C
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
ST

R
AT

EG
IC

 R
IS

K
S 

&
 S

TR
AT

EG
IC

 R
IS

K
S 

20
16

/1
7 

 Q
2

Ri
sk

 ID
Ri

sk
 N

am
e

M
an

da
to

ry
 

(c
an

no
t b

e 
cl

os
ed

)
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Ri

sk
O

rg
 

Le
ve

l
CP

 
Pr

io
rit

y
Ri

sk
 C

at
eg

or
y

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 
: 

Im
pa

ct
Sc

or
e

Ri
sk

 
Le

ve
l

Se
rv

ic
e

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

an
 

15
3

Ec
on

om
ic

 d
ow

nt
ur

n 
le

ad
s t

o 
fe

w
er

 c
us

to
m

er
s /

 m
em

be
rs

hi
ps

 a
nd

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

re
du

ce
d 

in
co

m
e

St
ra

t
Fi

na
nc

ia
l

3x
4

12
Hi

gh
Le

isu
re

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

Im
pr

ov
e 

va
lu

e 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f p

ro
du

ct
s /

 se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

of
fe

rin
gs

42
3

He
al

th
 o

f l
oc

al
 h

ou
sin

g 
m

ar
ke

t l
ea

ds
 to

 re
du

ce
d 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

pl
an

ni
ng

, r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 fa
ilu

re
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

la
n 

ta
rg

et
 a

nd
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 h
ou

sin
g 

ne
ed

St
ra

t
SP

Cu
st

om
er

 / 
Ci

tiz
en

, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l, 
So

ci
al

3x
4

12
Hi

gh
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Ho
us

in
g

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
sin

g 
ta

rg
et

s a
nd

 th
re

sh
ol

ds
 to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
s p

ar
t o

f w
or

k 
on

 
ne

w
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
an

d 
w

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 to

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t p

rio
or

ity
 fo

r S
ta

rt
er

 H
om

es
 

an
d 

vi
ab

ili
ot

y 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

. R
HE

 fo
cu

s o
n 

de
liv

er
y 

vi
a 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
sit

es
 th

at
 a

re
 

no
t r

el
ia

nt
 o

n 
m

ar
ke

t

15
1

In
cr

ea
se

d 
di

re
ct

 fi
tn

es
s c

om
pe

tit
io

n 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 c
us

to
m

er
 m

ig
ra

tio
n 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 le

ss
 u

sa
ge

/in
co

m
e.

St
ra

t
Cu

st
om

er
 / 

Ci
tiz

en
, 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
3x

3
9

M
ed

Le
isu

re
 &

 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
Im

pr
ov

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
ov

isi
on

, i
m

pr
ov

e 
gy

m
 m

an
ag

em
en

t &
 im

pr
ov

e 
qu

al
ity

/q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f f

ro
nt

lin
e 

gy
m

 fe
es

.

38
3

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

e 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

s l
ea

ds
 to

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 

re
sp

on
se

.
St

ra
t

Co
rp

Cu
st

om
er

/C
iti

ze
n,

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l, 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l

2x
4

8
M

ed
Cu

st
 S

er
vi

ce
s &

 
Co

m
m

s
HD

C 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ith

 N
YC

C 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Te
am

13
9

Fa
ilu

re
 o

f t
he

 S
af

er
 H

am
bl

et
on

 L
oc

al
 D

el
iv

er
y 

Gr
ou

p 
le

ad
s t

o 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 st

at
ut

or
y 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

St
ra

t
L

Le
ga

l
2x

4
8

M
ed

Le
isu

re
 &

 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
Th

e 
SH

LD
P 

is 
ch

an
gi

ng
 it

s o
pe

ra
tin

g 
m

od
el

 to
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t d

ur
in

g 
20

16
, t

hi
s w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

pi
lo

t p
ha

se
 fr

om
 O

ct
 2

01
6 

- M
ar

 
20

17
, a

t w
hi

ch
 p

oi
nt

 a
 fu

ll 
re

vi
ew

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

. 

22
5

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 in
ab

ili
ty

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 C

ou
nc

il 
Se

rv
ic

es
 e

ffi
ci

en
tly

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Fi

na
nc

ia
l, 

Re
pu

ta
tio

na
l

2x
3

6
M

ed
Co

rp
or

at
e 

Fi
na

nc
e

M
on

th
ly

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e

22
6

IC
T 

sy
st

em
(s

) f
ai

lu
re

 le
ad

s t
o 

lo
ss

 o
f C

ou
nc

il 
op

er
at

io
ns

 &
 k

ey
 c

ha
nn

el
s o

f 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
(t

el
ep

ho
ne

s,
 e

m
ai

l, 
w

eb
sit

e,
 e

tc
.) 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l t
o 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
an

d 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 w

ith
 C

iti
ze

ns
.

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
1x

5
5

M
ed

IC
T 

  (
in

c.
 

Re
pr

og
ra

ph
ic

s)
IC

T 
to

 re
vi

se
, t

es
t a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
Di

sa
st

er
 R

ec
ov

er
y 

pl
an

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
bu

sin
es

s n
ee

ds

40
7

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Bu

sin
es

s C
on

tin
ui

ty
 p

la
n 

le
ad

s 
to

 la
ck

 o
f r

es
ili

en
ce

 o
r i

na
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

cc
es

s H
DC

 se
rv

ic
es

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 lo

ss
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
or

 fa
ilu

re
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y.
 

M
St

ra
t

Co
rp

Cu
st

om
er

 / 
Ci

tiz
en

1x
5

5
M

ed
IC

T 
  (

in
c.

 
Re

pr
og

ra
ph

ic
s)

IC
T 

Di
sa

st
er

 R
ec

ov
er

y 
Po

lic
y 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
 is

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 B

us
in

es
s 

Ar
ea

s t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

re
sil

ie
nc

e 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

bu
sin

es
s n

ee
ds

. E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

Ki
t i

s i
n 

pl
ac

e,
 b

ei
ng

 re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 b
ac

ke
d 

up
 o

n 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is 

14
9

An
 in

ci
de

nt
 re

su
lti

ng
 in

 d
ea

th
(s

)le
ad

s t
o 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
fa

m
ily

/s
ta

ff 
&

 
re

pu
ta

tio
na

l d
am

ag
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 lo

w
er

 u
sa

ge
/in

co
m

e 
&

 fa
ilu

re
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

re
sid

en
ts

 h
ea

lth
.

St
ra

t
Cu

st
om

er
 / 

Ci
tiz

en
, 

Ec
on

om
ic

, 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l, 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l, 
He

al
th

 &
 

Sa
fe

ty
, L

eg
al

, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l, 
So

ci
al

1x
5

5
M

ed
Le

isu
re

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

Ad
he

re
nc

e 
to

 n
at

io
na

lly
 p

re
sc

rib
ed

 sa
fe

ty
 st

an
da

rd
s,

 a
dh

er
en

ce
 to

 si
te

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

sa
fe

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
, c

om
pe

te
nt

 st
af

f

70
5

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 ti
m

el
y 

le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

as
sis

ta
nc

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ke
y 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 re

su
lts

 in
 d

el
ay

s t
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
ith

 p
ot

en
tia

l a
dv

er
se

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
ef

fe
ct

s a
nd

 re
pu

ta
tio

na
l d

am
ag

e.
  

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p/
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l, 

Le
ga

l, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l

2x
2

4
Lo

w
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s

En
su

re
 p

rio
rit

isa
tio

n 
of

 w
or

k 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 in

 p
ro

je
ct

 d
ea

dl
in

es
 fo

r t
he

 k
ey

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.

70
9

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 se
t a

 2
01

7/
18

 B
ud

ge
t  

to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

ed
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x.
St

ra
t

Co
rp

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
1x

3
3

Lo
w

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Fi

na
nc

e
Co

m
pl

et
e 

an
d 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
th

e 
Bu

dg
et

 se
tt

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s

A
nn

ex
 A

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

ro
j S

tra
t R

is
ks

 2
01

6-
17

 Q
2.

xl
sx

2/
2

08
/1

1/
16

Page 22



AN
N

EX
 B

H
D

C
 C

H
AN

G
ED

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

ST
R

AT
EG

IC
 R

IS
K

S
20

16
-1

7 
Q

2
Ri

sk
 ID

Ri
sk

 N
am

e
M

an
da

to
ry

 
(c

an
no

t b
e 

cl
os

ed
)

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ri
sk

O
rg

 
Le

ve
l

CP
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Ri
sk

 C
at

eg
or

y
St

at
us

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 
: 

Im
pa

ct
Sc

or
e

Ri
sk

 
Le

ve
l

Se
rv

ic
e

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

an
 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
2 

ch
an

ge
s

PR
O

JE
CT

 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 R

IS
KS

63
2

N
or

th
 N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 d

el
ay

ed
  o

r s
ta

lls
 c

om
pl

et
el

y,
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l's

 su
pp

ly
 o

f h
ou

sin
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d.

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
EV

Ec
on

om
ic

, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
Ac

tiv
e

5x
5

25
Hi

gh
Bu

sin
es

s &
 

Ec
on

om
y

Th
e 

sit
ua

tio
n 

is 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

re
gu

la
r c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r c

on
so

rt
iu

m
 a

nd
 st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
63

2 
ch

an
ge

d 
m

ov
ed

 fr
om

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
ris

k 
to

 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

ris
k

62
3

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 k
ey

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 to

 D
al

to
n 

In
du

st
ria

l E
st

at
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 

re
st

ric
te

d 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
.

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
EV

Ec
on

om
ic

, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
Ac

tiv
e

5x
4

20
Hi

gh
Bu

sin
es

s &
 

Ec
on

om
y

Su
bm

iss
io

n 
of

 £
1.

8m
 g

ra
nt

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 L

EP
. C

om
m

itm
en

t f
or

m
 N

YC
C 

to
 

ov
er

se
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n.

62
3 

ch
an

ge
d

71
8

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 se
cu

re
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ar

tn
er

 to
 re

de
ve

lo
p 

th
e 

pr
iso

n 
sit

e 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

Co
uc

il'
s o

bj
et

iv
es

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Ec

on
om

ic
, 

Re
pu

ta
tio

na
l

Ac
tiv

e
2x

5
10

M
ed

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Fi

na
nc

e
Pr

oj
ec

t t
ea

m
 u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 a

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

di
al

og
ue

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ith

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fi
na

nc
ia

l, 
le

ga
l &

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ad

vi
ce

71
8 

N
EW

69
9

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 S

po
rt

s V
ill

ag
e 

- F
un

di
ng

 P
la

n 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

re
so

ur
ce

d 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 a

s i
nt

en
de

d
Pr

oj
ec

t
St

ra
t

HW
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p/
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l, 

Cu
st

om
er

/C
iti

ze
n,

 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l

Ac
tiv

e
3x

3
9

M
ed

Le
isu

re
 &

 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
N

at
io

na
l g

ov
er

ni
ng

  b
oi

di
es

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
 n

ee
ds

 d
riv

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
pr

op
os

al
. 1

06
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

fu
nd

in
g

69
9 

N
EW

70
3

So
w

er
by

 S
po

rt
s V

ill
ag

e 
- F

un
di

ng
 P

la
n 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

su
ffi

ci
en

tly
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 a
s i

nt
en

de
d

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
HW

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p/

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l, 
Cu

st
om

er
/C

iti
ze

n,
 

Re
pu

ta
tio

na
l

Ac
tiv

e
3x

3
9

M
ed

Le
isu

re
 &

 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
N

at
io

na
l g

ov
er

ni
ng

 b
od

ie
s t

o 
be

 c
on

su
lte

d 
w

ith
 a

 n
ee

ds
 d

riv
en

, c
om

m
un

ity
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
pr

op
os

al
. 1

06
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

fu
nd

in
g

70
3 

N
EW

69
2

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
an

d 
tim

el
y 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

dv
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

W
AS

S 
Ro

ut
e 

O
pt

im
isa

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t c

ou
ld

 re
su

lt 
in

 W
AS

S 
m

an
ag

em
en

t n
ot

 c
or

re
ct

ly
 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
or

 re
de

pl
oy

in
g 

W
AS

S 
st

af
f. 

Th
is 

in
 tu

rn
 m

ay
 re

su
lt 

in
 g

rie
va

nc
es

 
fr

om
 th

e 
st

af
f o

r U
N

IS
O

N
 w

hi
ch

 m
ig

ht
 d

el
ay

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Ec

on
om

ic
, 

Re
pu

ta
tio

na
l

Ac
tiv

e
2x

3
6

M
ed

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

HR
 te

am
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

dv
ic

e 
is 

gi
ve

n 
in

 a
 ti

m
el

y 
an

d 
ac

cu
ra

te
 m

an
ne

r. 
Th

is 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 in
to

 th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Pl

an
 so

 th
at

 o
th

er
 w

or
k 

ca
n 

be
 

re
pr

io
rit

ise
d.

 If
 a

ny
 c

om
pl

ex
 m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
e 

fu
rt

he
r a

dv
ic

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

69
2 

N
EW

71
5

£2
5m

 lo
an

 to
 B

ro
ad

ac
re

s A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

fa
ils

 b
ec

au
se

 th
e 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 
re

qu
ire

s t
he

 lo
an

, o
r e

nc
ou

nt
er

s d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s i

n 
th

ei
r r

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
in

co
m

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 n

y 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s r

ed
uc

ed

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Fi

na
nc

ia
l

Ac
tiv

e
3x

1
3

Lo
w

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Fi

na
nc

e
En

su
re

 o
th

er
 in

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

tin
g 

 p
os

sib
ili

tie
s a

re
 b

ei
ng

 e
xp

lo
re

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

ba
la

nc
ed

 b
ud

ge
t; 

m
on

ito
r t

he
 th

ird
 p

ar
tie

s f
in

an
ci

al
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 a
re

 
in

 a
 se

cu
re

  p
os

iti
on

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 lo
an

 th
e 

m
on

ey
; m

ai
nt

ai
n 

go
od

 re
la

tio
ns

 
w

ith
 th

e 
th

ird
 p

ar
ty

.  
Al

so
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 th
e 

lo
an

 is
 se

cu
re

d 
w

ith
 th

ei
r h

ou
sin

g 
st

oc
k

71
5 

N
EW

71
6

Th
e 

Co
un

ci
l p

la
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xi

st
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

is 
no

 u
nd

er
st

an
da

bl
e 

vi
sio

n 
or

 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il
Pr

oj
ec

t
St

ra
t

Co
rp

Fi
na

nc
ia

l, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
Cl

os
ed

/A
r

ch
iv

ed
3x

1
3

Lo
w

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Fi

na
nc

e
En

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l p

la
n 

is 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

m
an

ife
st

o,
 is

 c
re

at
ed

 o
n 

a 
4 

ye
ar

 
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

 is
 u

pd
at

ed
 a

nd
 re

po
rt

 to
 C

ab
in

et
 / 

Co
un

ci
l a

nn
ua

l.
71

6 
 c

lo
se

d

ST
RA

TE
G

IC
 R

IS
KS

67
7

Cy
be

r a
tt

ac
k 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 b

y 
us

er
 e

rr
or

 le
ad

s t
o 

lo
ss

 o
f k

ey
 IC

T 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 re
du

ce
d 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 IC
T 

Se
rv

ic
es

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
Ac

tiv
e

5x
3

15
Hi

gh
IC

T 
  (

in
c.

 
Re

pr
og

ra
ph

ic
s)

Co
m

pu
lsa

ry
 a

nn
ua

l C
yb

er
 S

ec
ur

ity
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r a
ll 

us
er

s,
 C

yb
er

 S
ec

ur
ity

 In
ci

de
nt

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
in

 p
la

ce
, a

ct
iv

el
y 

m
on

io
to

r a
nd

 re
vi

ew
 IC

T 
se

cu
rit

y 
po

lic
ie

s,
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

in
 W

AR
P 

(W
ar

ni
ng

, A
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

Re
po

rt
in

g 
Po

in
t)

 to
 sh

ar
e 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
ils

, a
rr

an
ge

 IC
T 

st
af

f t
ra

in
in

g 
to

 k
ee

p 
up

 w
ith

 
th

e 
la

te
st

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t

67
7 

ch
an

ge
d 

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

ris
k 

to
 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
ris

k

15
3

Ec
on

om
ic

 d
ow

nt
ur

n 
le

ad
s t

o 
fe

w
er

 c
us

to
m

er
s /

 m
em

be
rs

hi
ps

 a
nd

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

re
du

ce
d 

in
co

m
e

St
ra

t
Fi

na
nc

ia
l

Ac
tiv

e
3x

4
12

Hi
gh

Le
isu

re
 &

 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
Im

pr
ov

e 
va

lu
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f p
ro

du
ct

s /
 se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
of

fe
rin

gs
15

3 
ch

an
ge

d 
m

ov
ed

 fr
om

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
ris

k 
to

 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

ris
k

42
3

He
al

th
 o

f l
oc

al
 h

ou
sin

g 
m

ar
ke

t l
ea

ds
 to

 re
du

ce
d 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

pl
an

ni
ng

, r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 fa
ilu

re
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

la
n 

ta
rg

et
 a

nd
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 h
ou

sin
g 

ne
ed

St
ra

t
SP

Cu
st

om
er

 / 
Ci

tiz
en

, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l, 
So

ci
al

Ac
tiv

e
3x

4
12

Hi
gh

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Ho

us
in

g
Af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

sin
g 

ta
rg

et
s a

nd
 th

re
sh

ol
ds

 to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

s p
ar

t o
f w

or
k 

on
 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

an
d 

w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 to
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t p
rio

or
ity

 fo
r S

ta
rt

er
 H

om
es

 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ot
y 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
. R

HE
 fo

cu
s o

n 
de

liv
er

y 
vi

a 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

sit
es

 th
at

 a
re

 
no

t r
el

ia
nt

 o
n 

m
ar

ke
t

42
3 

ch
an

ge
d 

ris
k 

&
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 u

pd
at

ed

68
4

Pr
op

os
ed

 le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
ch

an
ge

s i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
Ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

ill
.

St
ra

t
Cu

st
om

er
/C

iti
ze

n
Cl

os
ed

/A
r

ch
iv

ed
4x

3
12

Hi
gh

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Ho

us
in

g
W

or
k 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 C

ou
nc

il 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
, p

ar
tn

er
s a

nd
 o

th
er

 L
As

 to
 e

xp
lo

re
/ 

de
ve

lo
p 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
ne

w
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s t
o 

m
iti

ga
te

 a
ny

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
 w

he
re

ve
r 

po
ss

ib
le

68
4 

ris
k 

cl
os

ed

70
8

£2
5m

 lo
an

 le
nt

 to
 a

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
sin

g 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 e
nc

ou
nt

er
s d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
in

 th
ei

r r
ep

ay
m

en
ts

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Fi

na
nc

ia
l

Cl
os

ed
/A

r
ch

iv
ed

2x
5

10
M

ed
Co

rp
or

at
e 

Fi
na

nc
e

M
on

ito
r t

he
 H

ou
sin

g 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

in
di

ca
tio

ns
 o

f d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s.

  A
lso

 
no

te
 th

at
 th

e 
lo

an
 is

 se
cu

re
d 

w
ith

 th
ei

r h
ou

sin
g 

st
oc

k
70

8 
cl

os
ed

A
nn

ex
 B

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

ha
ng

ed
 P

ro
j S

tra
t R

is
ks

 c
ha

ng
es

 2
01

6-
17

 Q
2.

xl
sx

1/
2

08
/1

1/
16

Page 23



AN
N

EX
 B

H
D

C
 C

H
AN

G
ED

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

ST
R

AT
EG

IC
 R

IS
K

S
20

16
-1

7 
Q

2
Ri

sk
 ID

Ri
sk

 N
am

e
M

an
da

to
ry

 
(c

an
no

t b
e 

cl
os

ed
)

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ri
sk

O
rg

 
Le

ve
l

CP
 

Pr
io

rit
y

Ri
sk

 C
at

eg
or

y
St

at
us

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 
: 

Im
pa

ct
Sc

or
e

Ri
sk

 
Le

ve
l

Se
rv

ic
e

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

an
 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
2 

ch
an

ge
s

15
1

In
cr

ea
se

d 
di

re
ct

 fi
tn

es
s c

om
pe

tit
io

n 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 c
us

to
m

er
 m

ig
ra

tio
n 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 le

ss
 u

sa
ge

/in
co

m
e.

St
ra

t
Cu

st
om

er
 / 

Ci
tiz

en
, 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
Ac

tiv
e

3x
3

9
M

ed
Le

isu
re

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

Im
pr

ov
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

ov
isi

on
, i

m
pr

ov
e 

gy
m

 m
an

ag
em

en
t &

 im
pr

ov
e 

qu
al

ity
/q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f f
ro

nt
lin

e 
gy

m
 fe

es
.

15
1 

ch
an

ge
d 

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

ris
k 

to
 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
ris

k
13

9
Fa

ilu
re

 o
f t

he
 S

af
er

 H
am

bl
et

on
 L

oc
al

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Gr

ou
p 

le
ad

s t
o 

no
n-

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 st
at

ut
or

y 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
St

ra
t

Le
ga

l
Ac

tiv
e

2x
4

8
M

ed
Le

isu
re

 &
 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

Th
e 

SH
LD

P 
is 

ch
an

gi
ng

 it
s o

pe
ra

tin
g 

m
od

el
 to

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t d
ur

in
g 

20
16

, t
hi

s w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
pi

lo
t p

ha
se

 fr
om

 O
ct

 2
01

6 
- M

ar
 

20
17

, a
t w

hi
ch

 p
oi

nt
 a

 fu
ll 

re
vi

ew
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
. 

13
9 

ch
an

ge
d 

ris
k 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

fr
om

 B
us

in
es

s &
 

Ec
on

om
y 

to
 

Le
isu

re
, a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 u

pd
at

ed

22
6

IC
T 

sy
st

em
(s

) f
ai

lu
re

 le
ad

s t
o 

lo
ss

 o
f C

ou
nc

il 
op

er
at

io
ns

 &
 k

ey
 c

ha
nn

el
s o

f 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
(t

el
ep

ho
ne

s,
 e

m
ai

l, 
w

eb
sit

e,
 e

tc
.) 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l t
o 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
an

d 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 w

ith
 C

iti
ze

ns
.

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l
Ac

tiv
e

1x
5

5
M

ed
IC

T 
  (

in
c.

 
Re

pr
og

ra
ph

ic
s)

IC
T 

to
 re

vi
se

, t
es

t a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

Di
sa

st
er

 R
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

bu
sin

es
s n

ee
ds

22
6 

ch
an

ge
d 

ris
k 

am
en

de
d

14
9

An
 in

ci
de

nt
 re

su
lti

ng
 in

 d
ea

th
(s

)le
ad

s t
o 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
fa

m
ily

/s
ta

ff 
&

 
re

pu
ta

tio
na

l d
am

ag
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 lo

w
er

 u
sa

ge
/in

co
m

e 
&

 fa
ilu

re
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

re
sid

en
ts

 h
ea

lth
.

St
ra

t
Cu

st
om

er
 / 

Ci
tiz

en
, 

Ec
on

om
ic

, 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l, 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l, 
He

al
th

 &
 

Sa
fe

ty
, L

eg
al

, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l, 
So

ci
al

Ac
tiv

e
1x

5
5

M
ed

Le
isu

re
 &

 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
Ad

he
re

nc
e 

to
 n

at
io

na
lly

 p
re

sc
rib

ed
 sa

fe
ty

 st
an

da
rd

s,
 a

dh
er

en
ce

 to
 si

te
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
sa

fe
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

, c
om

pe
te

nt
 st

af
f

14
9 

ch
an

ge
d 

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

ris
k 

to
 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
ris

k

70
5

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 ti
m

el
y 

le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

as
sis

ta
nc

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ke
y 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 re

su
lts

 in
 d

el
ay

s t
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
ith

 p
ot

en
tia

l a
dv

er
se

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
ef

fe
ct

s a
nd

 re
pu

ta
tio

na
l d

am
ag

e.
  

St
ra

t
Co

rp
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p/
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l, 

Le
ga

l, 
Re

pu
ta

tio
na

l

Ac
tiv

e
2x

2
4

Lo
w

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
En

su
re

 p
rio

rit
isa

tio
n 

of
 w

or
k 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ro
je

ct
 d

ea
dl

in
es

 fo
r t

he
 k

ey
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l’s
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

70
5 

N
EW

70
9

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 se
t a

 2
01

7/
18

 B
ud

ge
t  

to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

ed
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x.
St

ra
t

Co
rp

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
Ac

tiv
e

1x
3

3
Lo

w
Co

rp
or

at
e 

Fi
na

nc
e

Co
m

pl
et

e 
an

d 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

th
e 

Bu
dg

et
 se

tt
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s
70

9 
N

EW

A
nn

ex
 B

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

ha
ng

ed
 P

ro
j S

tra
t R

is
ks

 c
ha

ng
es

 2
01

6-
17

 Q
2.

xl
sx

2/
2

08
/1

1/
16

Page 24



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report To: Scrutiny Committee
17 November 2016

From: Chairman of Scrutiny Committee

Subject: POLICY REVIEW – HEALTH AND SAFETY
All Wards

1.0 SUMMARY:

1.1 The purpose of this report is to gather evidence from appropriate individuals in order to 
progress the Review.

2.0 BACKGROUND:

2.1 The Committee has previously agreed to undertake this Review and identified information 
and issues that it would like to consider. The Project Plan for the review is attached as 
Annex A.

2.2 The Terms of Reference of the review are as follows:

To consider whether the existing plans, policies and working arrangements for Health and 
Safety Management within the Council are effective and to ensure that the Council’s Health 
and Safety procedures meets or exceed the legal requirements.

3.0 INFORMATION AND ISSUES:

3.1 The following officers will be in attendance at the meeting:

 Stephen Lister, Head of Service – Leisure and Communities
 Dominic Passman, Health and Safety Risk Manager
 Gary Nelson, Head of Legal and Information (Monitoring Officer)
 Louise Hancock, Democratic Services Officer

4.0 RECOMMENDATION:

4.1 It is recommended that the Committee determines information that it would like officers to 
report upon to the next meeting of the Committee and other issues which they would like 
considered in respect of Health and Safety.

COUNCILLOR STEPHEN DICKINS

Background papers: None
Author ref: LAH
Contact: Louise Hancock

Democratic Services Officer
Direct Line No: (01609) 767015

201016 Health and Safety.doc

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

POLICY REVIEW – HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT

TERMS OF REFERENCE:

To consider whether the existing plans, policies and working arrangements for Health and Safety 
Management within the Council are effective and to ensure that the Council’s Health and Safety 
procedures meets or exceed the legal requirements

SCOPE

 To review the existing arrangements for Health and Safety Management, including the 
secondment arrangement with NYCC

 To review the Corporate Health and Safety Plan for 2016-2017
 To review the Health and Safety Policy 2016
 To consider performance on the key improvement priorities for 2016-2017
 To consider how the Corporate Policy and Plan is being implemented in the key risk areas for 

Health and Safety in the Council

OBJECTIVES

 To investigate whether the existing arrangements for Health and Safety Management are 
effective and fit for purpose

 To ascertain whether any significant Health and Safety issues remain unresolved and to 
consider a way forward to resolving these issues

 To review the Corporate Health and Safety Policy and Health and Safety Plan for 2016-17 
taking into consideration any outstanding issues that remain unresolved

 To review existing arrangements for Health and Safety Management and consider whether 
these are effective

WITNESSES

 Chief Executive, Dr Justin Ives
 Executive Director, Mick Jewitt
 Dominic Passman, Health and Safety Risk Manager
 Head of Service – Environment, Paul Staines
 Head of Service – Leisure and Communities, Steve Lister

Page 26



DOCUMENTS/EVIDENCE

 Health and Safety Policy 2016
 Health and Safety Plan for 2016/17
 Progress reports on the implementation of the Health and Safety Plans
 WASS Health and Safety Plan 2016/17
 Leisure and Communities Health and Safety Plan 2016/17

OTHER METHODS/CONSULTATION/RESEARCH

Task and Finish Groups.

OFFICER SUPPORT

Louise Hancock, Democratic Services Officer
Gary Nelson, Head of Service – Legal and Information (Monitoring Officer)

TIMESCALE

Commencing September 2016 
Projected completion January 2017
Report to Cabinet February 2017

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report To: Scrutiny Committee
17 November 2016

From: Chairman of Scrutiny Committee

Subject: POLICY REVIEW – CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT
All Wards

1.0 SUMMARY:

1.1 The purpose of this report is to review the evidence recorded to date and consider whether 
any further information is required before determining whether to conclude the Review.

2.0 BACKGROUND:

2.1 The Committee has previously agreed to undertake this Review and identified information 
and issues that it would like to consider. The Project Plan for the review is attached as 
Annex A.

2.2 The Terms of Reference of the review are as follows:

To investigate whether the current arrangements for enforcement of Civil Parking are 
effective;  whether there are any existing issues with delivery of the service and consider 
options for the future delivery of the service.

2.3 A summary of the key points highlighted from the evidence is attached at Annex B to the 
report along with a full memorandum of evidence at Annex C.

3.0 RECOMMENDATION:

3.1 The Committee is asked to determine whether any further information is required to assist 
with the Policy Review or whether conclusions can be formulated to enable the draft report 
to be prepared.

COUNCILLOR STEPHEN DICKINS

Background papers: None
Author ref: LAH
Contact: Louise Hancock

Democratic Services Officer
Direct Line No: (01609) 767015

201016 Civil Parking Enforcement.doc

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Annex A

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

POLICY REVIEW – CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT

TERMS OF REFERENCE:

To investigate whether the current arrangements for enforcement of Civil Parking are effective;  
whether there are any existing issues with delivery of the service and consider options for the 
future delivery of the service

SCOPE

 To ascertain what the current arrangements are for delivery of the service
 To examine whether the existing delivery of the service is effective
 To identify whether there are any issues which may require further investigation
 To explore options of future delivery

OBJECTIVES

 To determine whether the existing arrangements for enforcement of Civil Parking legislation 
are effective and value for money

 To identify any issues arising out of the delivery of the service and explore areas for 
improvement

 To ascertain future options for future delivery of enforcement to be considered

WITNESSES

 Executive Director, Dave Goodwin
 Head of Service – Customer and Economy – Helen Kemp
 Appropriate representative from Scarborough Borough Council

Page 30



DOCUMENTS/EVIDENCE

 Civil Parking Enforcement Agreement
 Statistics on numbers of notices served; appeals; bailiff stats
 Benchmarking information from other Authorities

OTHER METHODS/CONSULTATION/RESEARCH

Task and Finish Groups.

OFFICER SUPPORT

Louise Hancock, Democratic Services Officer
Gary Nelson, Head of Service – Legal and Information (Monitoring Officer)

TIMESCALE

Commencing September 2016 
Projected completion January 2017
Report to Cabinet February 2017

Page 31



Annex B
Key Points From Evidence

The following is a summary of the key points highlighted from the evidence received:

 It was recognised that the officers carrying out enforcement and issuing PCNs were carrying 
out their duties and that if the policies of the car parks were adhered to there would be less 
enforcement.

 Feedback was an area identified for possible improvement as this was considered to be 
weak.

 Options for future delivery would be considered at the appropriate time and could possibly 
include consideration of bringing the service back in-house.

 It was accepted that the current arrangements for Civil Parking Enforcement were adequate 
and presently fit for purpose.

Page 32



Annex C
Memorandum of Evidence

The Committee took evidence from Dave Goodwin, Executive Director, Hambleton District Council 
and received a presentation, a copy of which had previously been circulated and was available as 
part of the Committee’s records.

The presentation covered the following areas:

 History/Context of Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE)
 Partnership arrangements
 Statistics – Penalty Charge Notices
 Car Park Usage
 Future Options

The Committee was provided with an explanation on the background to CPE and was advised that 
historically the police used to issue car parking notices for highway contraventions and the District 
Council employed officers to do ‘off road’ enforcement, such as in the car parks.

In 2002 Harrogate moved to CPE because the Government wanted the polices’ time spent on 
other priorities.  Then the Government wanted all authorities to move to this system.  HDC entered 
into a partnership agreement in May 2013 and the agreement would run for a period of 5 years.  If 
the Council wished to change the arrangement or withdraw from the partnership, a period of notice 
would be required of 6 months.  If was suggested that if this were to be an option that the Council 
wished to explore, it would be worth considering having a new system in place and up and running 
prior to the existing arrangement ceasing.

The Committee was advised that as part of the partnership, there was a 5 year agreement and 
income was protected.  The District Council received a £14k subsidy each year because the 
Council had agreed to issue penalty charge notices at a lower rate than the previous system – 
hence why income was down.

The Committee was provided with information on statistics on benchmarking.   When the figures 
were examined, it appeared that the District Council issued more notices but this could be 
interpreted in several ways.  It could be that more people were breaking the rules and getting 
caught.  An example was that in 2015/16 HDC issued 2000 PCNs, there were 410 issued in 
Richmondshire and 780 in Ryedale.  Out of the 2000 HDC issued, 1700 were paid straightaway 
and 300 were challenged.

The Committee asked if officers were implementing a tougher regime in Hambleton rather than in 
Scarborough or Ryedale and whether a higher amount of parking contravention notices (PCN’s) 
may be challenged because more people were unhappy.  The Committee also wished to know 
whether the same staff worked in Hambleton as in other areas.

The Committee was advised that it could also be because of the number of car parking spaces.  
The staff worked on different rotas so that they did not regularly visit the same areas on the same 
days and times so that their visits could not be predicted by those using the car parking spaces.

The Committee commented that it would be interesting to identify of the PCNs issued, how many 
were residents and how many were visitors.

Page 33



The Committee was informed that the finances showed that the District Council was making a 
surplus but the expenditure in terms of costs with undertaking CPE covered staff, equipment, etc 
and it did not cover the cost of maintaining the car parks, this was an entirely separate issue.

The Committee gave consideration to future options and suggested that bringing the function back 
in-house may be an option worth considering at the appropriate time.  The Committee was advised 
that effectively this would mean going back to the old regime.  This may not be in-line with the 
Government’s initiative.

The Committee sought clarification as to who was the enforcing authority and was advised that this 
was Scarborough Borough Council as there was a single regime across North Yorkshire.

The Committee asked whether HDC could take on on-street parking which was currently policed 
by North Yorkshire County Council Highways and was advised that this was all part of the same 
Partnership regime and therefore subject to the same timescale regarding renewing the 
agreement.

The Committee enquired whether the days that enforcement was applicable, ie Sundays and Bank 
Holidays, could be altered or was this something that had to be agreed by the Partnership and was 
advised that this was a partnership approach but this could be altered including Sundays and Bank 
Holidays.  HDC could make changes to when enforcement took place.

The Committee took evidence from Clive Thornton, Corporate Facilities Manager, HDC

The Benchmarking data on Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) statistics had been circulated to the 
Committee prior to the meeting.  A copy of this document was available as part of the Committee’s 
records.

The Committee was advised that in the year 2015/16, benchmarking data indicated that Hambleton 
District Council had a good percentage of Penalty Charge Notices (PNC’s) paid (86%) with fewer 
being cancelled (11%).  This compared quite well with other Authorities.

The Committee noted that the statistics would indicate that there had been an increase in the 
number of PCN’s issued and enquired as to what could be the reason for this.  The Committee was 
advised that when Scarborough took over the service numbers increased, this could be because 
there was more consistency with enforcement.  The more patrols there were the more PCNs would 
be issued if there were breaches.  There was a consistent level of resources providing cover.

The Committee wished to know how Scarborough advertised and recruited their officers and how 
many were in the District.  The Committee was advised that HDC had set out the service based on 
43 hours a week of enforcement time.  There were three full-time officers and resources were 
shared with NYCC but HDC received 43 hours of time a week.  The District Council also supported 
Scarborough when interviewing for the posts.

The Committee was informed that HDC was a member of PATROL which was the Parking 
Adjudication Joint Committee and was made up of all Councils outside London operating Civil 
Parking Enforcement.  It oversaw the operation of adjudication appeals against parking tickets.  
The Council had one Member on the Committee appointed at the annual meeting and this was 
Councillor Knapton.  Councillor Knapton attended meetings and provided feedback.

The Committee enquired about Disabled parking  and was advised that charges for disabled bays 
were applied in accordance with the policy for whichever car park the user was in and disabled 
bays were subject to Civil Parking Enforcement.  Blue badge holders must comply with the 
requirements of the parking policy which was displayed on information boards and parking bays in 
the car parks.

Page 34



The Committee commented that the rules for disabled bays could be quite complicated and wished 
to know how users were informed about the rules and was advised that all the information was on 
the signage in the car parks.

The Committee asked whether the current signage was adequate and whether there was a 
national standard.  The Committee was advised that for off street parking it just had to be 
reasonable and for on street parking there was guidance which provided information on how signs 
should be laid out but they had to be distinctly different so that they could not be confused.  If there 
were any deficiencies with the signage brought to our attention we would respond to it.  Users 
should make themselves aware of the requirements and provided they comply, there would be no 
requirement for enforcement.

The Committee wished to know, in relation to HGV Parking, did overnight parking come under 
enforcement and was advised that the only provision for HGV parking was in the Applegarth Long 
Stay car park and users were subject to the policy of that car park.  Provided users complied with 
the policy there would be no requirement for enforcement.  If there were any breaches of HGV 
drivers using other car parks that they were not permitted to use, enforcement action would be 
used if necessary.

The Committee asked if the number of spaces that would be provided at the Bedale Car Park been 
taken into account in the number of hours of enforcement and was advised that the proposals for 
Bedale were included within the regime and adequate resources would be provided to cover it.

The Committee enquired whether there was any feedback of any parking notices, compliments, 
complaints and was advised that  there was no specific information collated although feedback was 
received from Scarborough.  This was an area where the link had been lost directly with the car 
park users.  HDC did review and respond when feedback was received and regular meetings are 
held with Scarborough about performance.

The Committee asked if the wording of a PCN was standard and was advised that, yes, this should 
be compliant with the Traffic Management Act 2004 which set out what needed to be included, 
such as vehicle registration, time of contravention, etc.

The Committee enquired whether the taking of pictures was a legal requirement and was advised 
that every PCN has a photograph accompanying it and this could be used as evidence.

The Committee noted that statistically, in 2015/16 more PCN’s were successfully challenged and 
enquired as to the possible reason why.  The Committee was advised that the reasons for 
cancellation varied and there was a process to go through and if you could provide a valid ticket 
the PCN may be cancelled.  Each case had to be considered depending on individual 
circumstances.

The Committee asked whether the District Council were being too lenient and was advised that if 
HDC refused an appeal, it could go to arbitration and they might allow the challenge.  
Approximately 50% of cases were accepted when they went to arbitration.

The Committee wished to ascertain whether rebate would continue and was advised that this 
would not continue beyond the 5 year agreement. 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Council Performance 2016/17 (Quarter 2)
	171116 Council Performance 2016-17 Q2 Annex A

	4 Review of Risk Management
	171116 Scrutiny Risk Management 2016-17 Annex A
	171116 Scrutiny Risk Management 2016-17 Q2 Annex B

	5 Policy Review - Health and Safety
	6 Policy Review - Civil Parking Enforcement



